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2021
80,404,211.47 100.35
281,423.80 0.35
80,122,787.67
( 8.870 ) 100.00
2021
)
33,641,929.49 | 115,536,823.27 3.43 | 80,404,211.47 2.39 | 100.35

2021

2021
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2020 2021
) )
2011 11 314,079,981 34,771,795 9.98 1,105
2012 11 323,166,889 35,777,806 10.48 1,160
2013 11 292,865,819 32,423,175 8.75 969
2014 11 193,652,666 21,439,287 7.57 838
2015 11 110,472,193 12,230,376 5.49 608
2016 11 123,974,417 13,725,208 5.12 567
10
2017 11 120,593,871 13,350,947 5.48 607
11
2018 11 98,622,154 10,918,459 4.46 494
12
2019 11 113,749,891 12,593,250 4.34 480
13
2020 11 98,036,038 10,853,570 3.98 441
2020 94,073,048 10,414,827 3.73 413
97,051,853 10,744,611 3.91 433
95,549,093 10,578,240 3.87 428
98,133,493 10,864,359 3.98 441
96,650,704 10,700,199 3.90 432
93,408,506 10,341,256 3.78 418
10 93,173,302 10,315,216 3.78 418
11 98,036,038 10,853,570 3.98 441
12 97,297,083 10,771,760 4.08 452
2021 94,218,525 10,430,933 3.99 442
86,602,300 9,587,741 3.82 423
80,122,788 8,870,394 3.64 403
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2010 12 2011 11 30 0.96 106

2011 12 2012 11 30 0.96 106

2012 12 2013 11 30 0.96 106

2013 12 2014 11 30 0.96 106

2014 12 2015 11 30 0.64 n

2015 12 2016 11 30 0.48 53
10

2016 12 2017 11 30 0.48 53
11

2017 12 2018 11 30 0.48 23
12

2018 12 2019 11 30 0.48 o3
13

2019 12 2020 11 30 0.48 53

2020 0.04 4

0.04 4

0.04 4

0.04 4

0.04 4

0.04 4

10 0.04 4

11 0.04 4

12 0.04 4

2021 0.04 4

0.04 4

0.04 4
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2010 12 2011 11 30 0.74
2011 12 2012 11 30 14.63
2012 12 2013 11 30 7.35
2013 12 2014 11 30 2.51
2014 12 2015 11 30 19.02
2015 12 2016 11 30 2.00
10 2016 12 2017 11 30 16.41
11 2017 12 2018 11 30 9.85
12 2018 12 2019 11 30 8.07
13 2019 12 2020 11 30 2.76

x 100
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10,084,219 7,484,716 18,225,686
10,084,219 7,484,716 18,225,686
7,192,046 7,587,263 17,830,469
7,192,046 7,587,263 17,830,469
11,046,407 11,143,724 17,733,152
11,046,407 11,143,724 17,733,152
2,995,182 7,442,933 13,285,401
(2,995,182) (7,442,933) (13,285,401)
924,927 5,197,632 9,012,696
(924,927) (5,197,632) (9,012,696)
6,466,599 2,971,425 12,507,870
(6,466,599) (2,971,425) (12,507,870)
10 4,418,116 4,629,532 12,296,454
(4,418,116) (4,629,532) (12,296,454)
1 6,160,303 5,383,471 13,073,286
(6,160,303) (5,383,471) (13,073,286)
b 7,047,426 2,718,115 17,402,597
(7,047,426) (2,718,115) (17,402,597)
1 2,366,918 3,991,633 15,777,882

(2,366,918)

(3,991, 633)

(15,777,882)
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2020 11 30
2020 11 30 2019 11 30
(D 98,344,098 10,887,675 114,218,915 12,645,176
13 1,780 197 183 20
- - 25,075 2,776
191,234 21,172 781,058 86,471
122,701 13,584 38,322 4,243
98,659,813 10,922,628 115,063,553 12,738,686
192,885 21,354 781,142 86,480
122,690 13,583 38,167 4,225
1,639 181 3,391 375
63,519 7,032 152,565 16,890
13,038 1,443 25,487 2,822
63,443 7,024 152,622 16,897
2,379 263 5,752 637
12,014 1,330 13,278 1,470
20,780 2,301 18,328 2,029
17,339 1,920 29,793 3,298
89,934 9,957 78,245 8,663
24,115 2,670 14,892 1,649
623,775 69,058 1,313,662 145,436
,10 98,036,038 10,853,570 113,749,891 12,593,250
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2020 11 30
2020 11 30 2019 11 30
(b) 15,578,277 1,724,671 18,039,676 1,997,173
(15,354,327) (1,699,878) (14,468,371) (1,601,793)
4,055,315 448,964 6,853,004 758,696
4,279,265 473,757 10,424,309 1,154,075
19,952 2,209 19,998 2,214
806,616 89,300 869,637 96,278
45,598 5,048 44,111 4,884
806,561 89,294 869,637 96,278
30,217 3,345 32,612 3,610
32,740 3,625 16,524 1,829
21,422 2,372 15,806 1,750
62,518 6,921 99,553 11,022
84,630 9,369 92,399 10,229
43,291 4,793 28,827 3,191
1,953,545 216,277 2,089,104 231,285
(58,107) (6,433) (45,577) (5,046)
1,895,438 209,844 2,043,527 226,239
2,383,827 263,913 8,380,782 927,836
11 7,898,757 874,471 7,039,321 779,323
7,898,757 874,471 7,039,321 779,323
(5,514,930) (610,558) 1,341,461 148,513
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2020 11 30
2020 11 30 2019 11 30
113,749,891 12,593,250 98,622,154 10,918,459
10,979,086 1,215,495 36,557,890 4,047,324
(21,178,009) (2,344,617) (22,771,614) (2,521,045)
(5,514,930) (610,558) 1,341,461 148,513
98,036,038 10,853,570 113,749,891 12,593,250
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102 34
102
2020 11 30
98,344,098 98,344,098
98,344,098 98,344,098
2019 11 30
114,218,915 114,218,915
114,218,915 114,218,915
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11 30 45,577

2020
2020

150/290

Ooooooooooooooooooad

19,998

869,637

58,107 2019



2019 11 30

44,111

EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

45,598
44,111
45,598 2019 11 30
0.80
0.03
806,561 2019 11 30 869,637
30,217 2019 11 30 32,612

32,740 2019 11 30 16,524
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2020 11 30 2019 11 30
2020 11 30 2019 11 30
(15,354,327) (14,468,371)
(15,354,327) (14,468,371)
4,055,315 6,853,004
4,055,315 6,853,004
100 100 10,000
2019 12 2020 11 30
204,339 1,334 (26,623) 179,050
43,231 319 (4,915) 38,635
233,971 22,883 (37,079) 219,775
17,402,597 2,366,918 (3,991,633) 15,777,882
17,884,138 2,391,454 (4,060,250) 16,215,342
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2018 12 2019 11 30
247,777 16,074 (59,512) 204,339
43,167 2,198 (2,134) 43,231
257,758 74,284 (98,071) 233,971
13,073,286 7,047,426 (2,718,115) 17,402,597
13,621,988 7,139,982 (2,877,832) 17,884,138
10
2020 11 30
20,134,219 112.4502
5,360,041 138.7356
907,196,747 4,127.8412
62,790,101 3.9796
2019 11 30
22,232,390 108.8017
6,296,212 145.6395
981,616,683 4,195.4707
75,611,579 4.3448
2018 11 30
24,856,993 100.3201
5,644,895 130.7700
1,034,420, 348 4,013.1447
58,263,905 4.4567
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11
2020 11 30
2019 12 16 2019 12 19 .04 698,564
2020 15 2020 21 .04 692,796
2020 18 2020 21 .04 706,121
2020 16 2020 19 .04 670,842
2020 15 2020 20 .04 664,359
2020 15 2020 20 .04 663,037
2020 15 2020 18 .04 640,870
2020 15 2020 20 .04 636,061
2020 17 2020 20 .04 637,436
2020 15 2020 18 .04 633,838
2020 10 15 2020 10 20 .04 628,032
2020 11 16 2020 11 19 .04 626,801

154/290



EDINETOOOO

o o =725 )

Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019 11 30
2018 12 17 2018 12 20 .04 519,975
2019 15 2019 18 .04 524,716
2019 15 2019 21 .04 542,825
2019 15 2019 20 .04 532,103
2019 15 2019 18 .04 550,729
2019 15 2019 20 .04 571,739
2019 17 2019 20 .04 596,091
2019 16 2019 19 .04 600,250
2019 16 2019 21 .04 644,552
2019 17 2019 20 .04 638,116
2019 10 15 2019 10 18 .04 663,062
2019 11 15 2019 11 20 .04 655,163

12
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2020 11 30 2019 11 30 +/-10

2020 11 30
10
0.9 ) 0.9
(1.0 ) 1.0
1.1 ) 1.1
0.8 ) 0.8
0.9 ) 0.9
6.3 ) 6.3
(11.0 ) 11.0

2019 11 30
10
1.0 (1.0 )
(1.0 ) 1.0
1.4 ) 1.4
1.4 ) 1.4
1.5 ) 1.5
6.9 ) 5.9
(10.2 ) 10.2
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(
50bps 125bps
50bps 125bps 0.50 1.25
2020 11 30
+/-50bps 2019 11 30 +/-75bps +/-
125bps 2019 11 30 +/-125bps
2020 11 30

0.8 ) 0.8
0.9 ) 0.9
0.6 ) 0.6
1.0 ) 1.0
0.9 ) 0.9
(5.2 ) 5.2
9.4 ) 9.4
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2019 11 30
0.8 ) 0.8
0.9 ) 0.9
0.7 ) 0.7
1.5 ) 1.5
0.9 ) 0.9
B.9 ) 3.9
8.7 ) 8.7

COVID-19
COVID-19
COVID-19
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2020 11 30
5.72 2019 11 30 6.17
10
2020 11 30 2019 11 30

63 66
36 33
1 1

100 100

2020 11 30 2019
11 30

2020 11 30 2019 11 30
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2020 11 30 2019 11 30
2020 11 30 2019 11 30

98,344,098 114,218,915
1,780 183
- 25,075
191,234 781,058
122,701 38,322
98,659,813 115,063,553

2020 11 30
100.31

2019 11 30
100.41
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100
(
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2020 11 30 2019 11 30
) ) 1,780 0.00 183 0.00
1,780 0.00 183 0.00
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15
32
16
2020 11 30 2019 11 30
0.835981 0.906947
104.275000 109.510000
17
2020 11 30 2019 11 30
18
2020 11 30 2019 11 30
19
2019 28
20
COVID-19
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2020
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2020 11 30

37,679,731 @ 98,344,008 100.31

98,344,098 100.31

98,344,098 100.31

2020 11 30 2019 11 30

98,344,098 100.31 114,218,915 100.41

(308, 060) (0.31) (469,024) (0.41)

98,036,038 100.00 113,749,891 100.00

99.68

0.32

100.00
@
V)
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Goldman Sachs Global Funds
Goldman Sachs Emerging Markets Debt Local Feader
Statement of Financial Pesition
As at 30 November 2020

30 November 200 30 November 2018

Hotes 53 uss

Pssets
Financial assats st fair value through profit or loss 3y B 98 344 098 114 218915
Cash 13 1780 1683
Reimbursement from Imvesiment Adviser T . 25075
Recanable for Units sold 191 234 7e1058
Recearwable for investments sold 122701 38 322
Total Assets 98 659 813 115,063,553
Liabilities
Payable for investments purchazed 182 BES 781142
Payable for Units redeamed 122550 38,167
Management Company fees payable 7 163 33
I estrnant Adviser fees payable T B3 519 152 565
Administration and Depositary faes payable 7 1303 25 467
Distribution fees payable 7 B3 443 152 522
Agent Member fees payable T 2318 5,752
Tran=fer Agent fees payable T 12014 13278
Ay dit fees payable 20780 18328
Legalfees payable 17338 29,793
Printng fees payable 2934 78,245
Other liabiltes 24 115 14 592
Total Liabilities (Excluding Net Assets Atiributable

to Holders of R edeemable Participating Units) 623 775 1,313,662
Het Assets Attrihutable to Holders of Redeemable

Participating Units 9,10 98 036 D3 113,749,891

Oin behalf of the Board of Directors of the Manager:

/I ¢ f (ean e

Direclor Director

24 March 2021

The accompanying notes form an infegral part of the financial statemants
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Goldman Sachs Global Funds
Goldman Sachs Emerging Markets Debt Local Feeder
Statement of Comprehensive Income
Far the Year Ended 30 Movem ber 2020

30 November 2020 30 Novemhber 2019

Hotes uss usy

Income
Dividend income Bl 15578 277 18039576
Met realised investment lnss B (15 354 327) (14488 371)
Met change in unrealized invesimeant gain =] 4 055 315 B E53 004
Het Investment Gain 4,279 265 10,424,309
Expenses
Management Coampany fees 7 19952 189998
Investment Adviser fees T 86616 BE9B3T
Adminestration and Dapositary fees F 45588 44 111
Distribution feas 7 B06 561 BE9 B3V
Agant bdember fees 7 N7 32512
Transfer Agenl fees 7 32,740 16524
Audi fan 21,422 15206
Legal fess 652518 99,853
Printing fees 84 530 92398
Ciher expenses 43291 2B ET
Total Expenses 1,953,545 2,069,104
Reimbursement of expenses by the Inve siment

Adveser i (58 107) (48 577
Total Operating Expenses 1,895,438 2043527
Operating Profit 2,383,827 8,380,782
Finance Costs:
Distnbitions o Holders of Redeemable Paicipating

Uris 1 7 gaa 7a7 7033 31
Total Finance Costs 1898757 7.039.321
Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of

Redeemable Paricipating Units from O perations 5,514,930} 1,341,461

(Fains and Losses arose solely from continuing mvesting activities. There were no gains and lozses other than those
dealt with in the Statement of Comprehensie Income,

Cin behalf of the Board of Directors of the New Manager:

7” r”'.{fri:ﬁmff-\

Drector Diractor

24 March 2021

The accompanying notes form an mteqgral part of the financial statements.

13
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Goldman Sachs Global Funds
Goldman Sachs Emerging Markets Debt Local Feeder
Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable
to Helders of Redeemable Participating Units
For the Year Ended 30 November 2020

30 November 2020 30 November 2019

Motes uss uss

Met Assets Attributable to Holders of

Redeemable Paricipating Units at Start of Year 113 749 891 88 527 154
Proceseds from Redeemable Participating Units issuad 9 10,979,085 35 557,880
Payments for Redeemable Participating Units redeemed 9 (21,178,009) (22,771, 814)
Change in Met Assets Altnbutable to

Holders of Redeemable Participating

Units from Cperations (5,514,930) 1,341 461
Met Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable

Participating Units at Year End 98,036,038 113,749,891

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

14
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Goldman Sachs Global Funds
Goldman Sachs Emerging Markets Debt Local Feeder
Motes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 November 2020

1. ©Organisation

Goldman Sachs Global Funds (“the Trust”) is a Unit Trust established as an umbrella fund. The Central Bank
of Ireland (the “Certral Bank™) autharised the Trust under the European Communities (Underakings for
Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2011, as amended (the "UCITS Regulations”).
The Trust is subject to the requirement of the Central Bank (Supenvision & Erforcement) Act 2013 (Section
48(1) (Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations, 2018 (the "CBI
Reguilations®),

Since 28 February 2019, Goldman Sachs Asset Management Fund Services Limited ("GSAMFSL") has been
appointed as the Manager of the Trust, Refer ta Mate 7 for the functions the Manager undertakes

State Street Custodial Services (Ireland) Limited ("the Depositary™) has been appainted to act as the
Depositary of the Trust pursuant to the Trust Deed.

The Fund invests in Goldman Sachs Emerging Markets Debt Local Portfolio (the "Master Portfalio™), a sub-
fund of Goldman Sachs Funds SICAY, an imvestment company organised under the laws of the Grand Duchy
of Luxembourg as a “Societe d'investissemnent & Capital Vanable".

2. Investment Objectives

The investment objective of the Fund is a high level of tatal retum consisting of income and capital appreciation
To achieve this objective, all, o substantially all, of the proceeds of each class of Units in the Fund will be
invested in the Class *IXO" share class of the Master Portfolio,

In addition, a small portion of the Fund may be retained in cash or invested in liguid imestments for liguidity
purposes and for the purposes of paying any expenses due by the Fund, but such imnvestments will not excead
10% of the Met Asset Value of the Fund

3. Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

The Trust has applied Financial Reporting Standards 102 ('FRS 1027) "The Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland”

The financial siatements are presented in United States Dollars, the Trust's funcltional currency. The
preparabion of the financial statements s in accordance with FRS 102, Irish Statute comprising the Unit Trusts
Act 1990 and in accordance with the UCITS Regulations. The financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis.

The preparation of the financial statementz requires the Board of Directors of the Manager to make certain
estimates and assumplions that may affect the amounts repored in the financial statements and
accompanying notes. Refer to the liabiliies section of the Statement of Financial Position and Mote 4 for
instances where the Board of Directors of the Manager was required to make certain estimates and
assumptions to determine fair value. Actual results may differ from those estimates. Accounting standard FRS
102 applied in preparing financial statements giving a true and fair value is that published by Chartered
Accountants Ireland and issued by the Financial Reporting Council.

The financial statements have been prepared under the histoncal cost comnvention as madified by the
revaluation of financial assets and financial iabilities helkd at fair value through profit of loss

The format and certain wording of the financial statements has been adapted from those contained in FRS
102, Section 3 "Financial Statement Presentation” so that, in the opinion of the Manager, they mare
apprapriately reflect the nature of the Trust's business as an investment trust In the opinion of the Manager,
the financial staterments with the noted changes provide the infarmation required by the Uinit Trust Act 1950,

15

170/290



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Goldman Sachs Global Funds
Goldman Sachs Emerging Markets Debt Local Feeder
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 November 2020 {(continued)

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(b} Investment Transactions, Related Investment Income and Operating Expenses

Investment transactions are recorded on a trade date basis. Realised gains and losses are based on the
Weighted Average cost method. Dividend income and dividend expense are recorded on the ex-dividend date
and interest income and interest expense are accrued over the life of the investment. Interest income includes
accration of market discount, onginal issue discounts and amortisation of premiums and is recorded into
income aver the Iife of the underlying investment. Interest income and dividend income are recognised on a
gross basis before withholding tax, if any.

Operating expenses are recognised on an accrual basis.
{e) Tranmsaction Costs

Transaction costs are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as part of net change in
gainfloss) on investment secunties ard net realized gaind{loss) on imvestment securities. Depositary based
tranzaction costs are included in ‘Depositary fees' in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Transaction costs for ficed income investments, forward curmency contracts and other derivative contracts
excluding futures contracts, are not separately identifiable. For these investments, transaction costs are
included in the purchase and sales price and are part of the grozs investment performance of each Portfolio.

(d} Financial Investment in Securities and Valuation

Under FRS 102, in accounting for all of its financial instruments, an entity s required to apply sither (a) the full
requirements of Section 11 "Basic Financial Instruments” and Section 12 "Other Financial Instruments Issues”
of FRS 102, (b) the recognition and measurement provisions of International Accounting Standards 39
“Financial Instruments. Recognition and Measurement” (|AS 39%) as adopted for use in the European Union
and the disclosure requirements of Sections 11 and 12, or (¢} the recognition and measurement provisions of
International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") 8 “Financial Instruments® (“IFRS 9°) and the disclosure
requirements of Sections 11 and 12. The Trust has elected to apply the recognition and measurement
provisions of 1AS 39 and the disclosure requirements of Sections 11 and 12

i Classification

A financial asset or financial liability at fair value through profit or loss is a financial asset or ablity that is
classified as held-for-trading or designated at fair value through profit or loss. The following financial
investments are classified as held-for-trading: collective investment schames.

Financial assets that are not at fair value through profit or loss include accounts receivable. Financial liabilities
that are nat at fair value through prafit or loss include accounts payable and financial liabilties arising on
redearnable Units.

i, Recagnition and Derecognition

The Trust recognises financial assets and inancial liabilties on the date it becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the investment, Purchases and sales of financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
using trade date accounting. From trade date, any gains and losses anising from changes in fair value of the
financial assets or financial latlities are recorded in the Statement of Comprehensive Income

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or
the Trust has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of cwnership.
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Goldman Sachs Global Funds
Goldman Sachs Emerging Markets Debt Local Feeder
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 November 2020 (continued)

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

{d) Financial Investment in Securities and Valuation {continued)

i, Fair Value Measurement Frinci

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loes are valued in accordance with 1AS
39. Financial assets and financial liabilities are intially recorded at their transaction price and then measured
at fair value subsequent to initial recognition. Gains and losses ansing from changes in the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss' category are presented in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income in the peried inwhich they arise.

Financial assets classified as receivables are carried at cost less impairment losses, if any. Financial liabilities,
other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are measured at cost. Financial kabilites arising from
Redeemable Participating Units issued by the Trust are carried at the redemption amount repregenting the
imvestors’ right to a residual amount of the Trust's MNet Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Units ["Met Assets®).

The fair value of all securities is determined according to the following pobcies

{iii 1) Shares in Coliective lnvesiment Schemes

The fair value of inrvestments in open-ended collective investment schemes, comprising UCITS collective
investment schemes, is bazed upon the net azset values per share as supplied by the funds, in accordance with
the valuation policy of the applicable fund as outlined in its prospectus.

(i 20 All Securiias

If a quoted market price is not available from a third party pricing samvice or a dealer, or a guatation is believed
to be materially inaccuwrate, the fair valug of the investment is determined by using valuation techniques.
Valuation techniques include the use of recent market ransactions, reference to the current fair value of
ancther investment that is substantially the same, discounted cash flow analyses or any other techniques that
provides a reliable estimate of prices obtained in actual market fransactions.

Such securities shall be valued at their probable realization value as determined by a Valuer. The Valuer iz
appointed by the Manager and approved by the Depositary. The Valwer during the year ended 30 November
2020 was Goldman Sachs & Co. LLC and the valuation functionwas performed by Goldman Sachs Controllers
Division (“Contrallers™).

The investments have been valued in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles that may
require the use of certain estimates and assumptions to determine fair value, Although these estimates and
assumptlions are based on the best available information, actual results could be materially different from these
estimates.

Refer to note 4 for the securties where the Valuer was used to determine fair value,

(&) Cash
Cash is valued at amorised cost, which approximates fair value

(T} Foreign Currency Translation

Transactions in forsign currencies are translated at the faregn currency exchange rate in effect at the date of the
transaction. Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into US Dollars at the foreign
currency closing exchange rate in effect at the year end date. Foreign currency exchange differences arsing on
transtation and realised gains and losses on disposals or setlements of assets and liabilities are recognised in the
Staternert of Comprehensive Income, Foreign curmency exchande gains of losses relaling to investments at fair
walue through profit of loss, derivative financial investrments, and all other foreign currency exchange gains of losses
relating to monetary ierms, including cash and cash equivalerts, are reflected in the ret realised investrmert
gainf{lass) or net change in unrealised investment gainiless) in the Statement of Comprehensive Income,
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 November 2020 {(continued)

3

(q)

{h)

4.

Significant Accounting Policles (continued)

Finance Costs

Digtributions declared on the Redee mable Participating Units are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income as Finance Costs.

Redeemable Participating Units

All Redeemable Participating Units issued by the Trust provide the investors with the right to redeem for cash at
the value propartionate to the investor's share in the Trust's Met Assets on the redemgption date.

In accordance with FRS 102, Section 22 "Liabdities and Equity™, such Units have been classified as a financial
liabality at the value of the redemgption amaount in the Statement of Financial Position. The Trust is contractually
abliged o redeem Units in accordance with the Prospectus

Valuation Determined by the Valuer

As at 30 Movernber 2020 and 30 November 2019, thare were no assels or liabilities where estimates and
assumptions were used to determine fair valus

Taxation

Under current Irish law and practice, the Trust qualfies as an investment underttaking as defined in Section
7388 of the Taxes Consolidation Act 1957, as amendead. On that basis Irish tax is not chargeable to the Trust
an its iNGome of capital gains

The Trust will not be liable to insh tax in respect of its income and gains, other than on the occurrence of a
chargeable event. A chargeable event includes any distribution to Unitholders or any encashment, redemption
or transfer of Units or appropriation or cancellation of Units, or a deemed disposal of Units every & years
beginning from the date of the acquisition of those Units, but does not occur in respect of:

{a) Unitholders who are neither Insh Resident nor Inish Crdinary Resident for tax purposes at the time of
the chargeable event and who have provided the Trust with a relevant declaration to that effect; and

(b]  cerain exempted Irish tax resident Unitholders who have provided the Trust with the necessary sigred
stahutory declarations.

A chargeable event does not include:

{i) any transaction in relation to Units held in a recognised clearing system as designated by order of the
Revenue Commissioners of Ireland:

{ni) an exchange by a Unithalder, effected by way of an amt's length bargain where no payment is made
to the Unitholder af Units in the Trust for other Uinits in the Trust;

{iii) an exchange of Units arising on a qualified amalgamation or reconstruction of a fund with anather
fund, or,

{iv) a transfer by a Unithalder of the entitlemert to a Unit where the transfer is between spouses and former
spouses, subject to certain conditions.

In the absence of an appropriate declaration, the Trust will be liable for Irish tax on the occumence of a
chargeable event and the Trust reserves its right to withhold such taxes from Unitholders. Capital gains,
dividends and interest received by the Trust may be subject to taxes, including withholding taxes in the
countries in which the issuers of ifvestments are located, which may be included in the Net Asset Value
(“MAVT) of the Trust. Such taxes may not be recoverable by the Trust or its Uinitholders.
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Motes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 November 2020 {(continued)

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Under aAmendments to FRS 102, Section 34, the Trust is required to classify fair value measurements using a
fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value
hierarchy has the following levels:

Level 1 — Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for idertical,
unrestricted assets or liabilities;

Level 2 = Cucted prices in markets that are not active or financial instrumeants for which significant inputs are
observable (including but not limited o quoted prices for similar securities, interest rates, foreign exchange rates,
violatility and credit spreads), either directly or indirectly. This may include the Valuers” assumptions in determining
fair value measurement;

Level 3 = Prices or valuations that require significant unobsenvable inputs (including the Valuers' assumplions in
determining fair value measurement).

The level inthe fair value hierarchy withinwhich the fair value measurement is categarised in its ertiraty shall be
determined on the bases of the lowest level inplt that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entinaty,
For this purpose, the significance of an input is assessed against the fair value measurement in its entirety. If a
fair value measurament uses absenable inputs that require significant adjustment based on unabsenvable inputs,
that measurement is a Level 3 measurement, Assassing the significance of a paricular input fo the fair value
measurement inits entirety requires judgement, considering factors spedfic to the asset or akility.

The fallowirg tables provide an analyss of financial instruments that are measured at fair value in accordance
with FRS 102

Financial Assets measured at fair value
Goldman Sachs Emerging Markets Debt Local Feeder

30-Now-2020

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets at
fair value through
profit or loss uss uss uUss uss
Irmvestment - Long 58 344 095 - - 98 344 098
Taotal 88,344,008 - - 88,344,098

Financial Assets measured at fair value

Goldman Sachs Emerging Markets Debt Local Feeder

30-Novw-2018

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets at
fair value through
profit or loss uss uss uss uss
Irvestrnent - Long 114218915 - - 1142180915
Total 114,218,915 = = 114,218,915
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 November 2020 {(continued)

Significant Agreements and Related Parties

Manager

GSAMFSL, a wholly-owned indirect subsidiary of The Goldman Sache Group, Inc., has been appointed as the
Manager of the Trust.

GSAMFSL is entitled to receive an annual management charge which shall be accrued daily and paid monthiy
in arears. The amount eamed by the Manager was LIS519,952 for the year under review (year ended 30
November 2019: USS$19,598),

Investment Adviser and Sub-Investment Adviser

The Manager, on behalf of the Trust, has appainted Goldman Sachs Asset Management International (“the
Investment Adviser”), a related party to the Manager, as the Investment Adviser af the Trust, The Investment
Adviser has appointed Goldman Sachs Asset Management Co., Ltd as Sub-Investment Adviser ta the Trust,
The Investment Adviser is entitled to receive a fee of 0.80% per annum of the Net Asset Value for its services,
The amount earned by the Investmert Adviser during the year under review was USZBDGE18
{year endad 30 November 2019 USS$880,637). The Manager has agreed to limit the tatal anmual fees and
expenses (including the impact of fees and expenses at the Master Portfolio level) to 2.5% per annum of the
Met Asset Value of the Fund or to such lesser amount as the Manager may agree. The Manager and the
Investment Adviser have agreed that the Investiment Adviser will reimbursa the excess expenses.

For the year ended 30 Movember 2020, there were expenses reimbursed of US55 107 by the Imvestment
Advizer to the Trust (year ended 30 Movember 2019: USS45 577).

There are no sales charges in respect of the purchase or sale of Class *IX0" shares in the Master Partfolio.

Directors’ of the Manager Remuneration

Mz Barbara Healy, Ms. Victoria Parry and Mr. Mick Phillips are external Directors and have no execulive
functian with the Investment Adviser or its related party companies, The Management Company pays each
external Director an annual fee for their services as a Director of the Manager. Ms. Barbara Healy and
Ms. Victaria Parry are independent Directors.

Mr. Tom Fitzgerald, Mr. Hugo MachMeill, Ms. Jackie C'Connor and Mr. Glenn Thorpe are related parties to the
Investment Adviser and receive no compensation from the Trust or the Manager.

Mr. Huga Macheill retired as a member of the Board of Directors of the Manager as of 8 March 2020,
Mr. Mick Phillips was appointed as a member of the Board of Directors of the Manager as of 7 August 2020

Administrator

The Trust has appointed State Street Fund Services (Ireland) Limited (*the Administrator”) as the central
administration agent of the Fund. The Administrator iz regponsible for the administration of the Trusts affairs
including the calculation of the Net Asset Value and the preparation of the financial statements. The Trust pays
a monthly admanistration fee per annum of the Net Asset Value of the Trust, in respect of the provision of
administrative, accounting and irvestor services. This fee is subject to a minimum amount per month. In
addition, the Trust pays the Administrator fees per annum in respect of the preparation of the audited and
financial statements of the Trust, as well as certain fees for investment transactions. These fees shall be
accrued daily and paid generally monthly in arrears. The amount earned by the Administrator and Depositary
was IS5345 598 for the year under review (year ended 30 November 2019: US544 111).

Depositary

The Trust has appointed State Street Custodial Services (Ireland) Limited to act as Depositary (‘the
Depositary”) of the Company's assets. The Trust will pay the Depositary an annual fee, baged on the Trust's
net assets, which shall be accrued daily and paid monthly in armears, subject to a minimum monthly fee. The
amount earned by the Administrator and Depositary was US545 508 for the year under review (year ended 30
Movember 2019; USS44 111).
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Motes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 November 2020 {(continued)

Significant Agreements and Related Parties (continued)

Distributor and Agent Member Company
The Manager acts as distributor of the Uinits.

The Manager has appointed Goldman Sachs Japan Co., Ltd,, a related party to the Trust, to act as Distributor
inJapan

The Manager has appointed Goldman Sachs Asset Management Co., Ltd , a related party to the Trust, to act
as the Agent Member Comparny in Japan.

The Trust will pay the Distributer a quarterly fee in arrears at an annual rate of 0.80% and the Agent Member
Company in Japan a quarterly fee in arears at an annual rate of 0.03% of the daily MNet Asset Value of the
Fund The amount eamed by the Distributor was USZ806 567 for the year under review (year ended 30
Movember 2019 USSBES 637). The amount earned by the Agent Member Company was US530, 217 for the
year under review (year ended 30 Movember 2019 US532 612).

Registrar and Transfer Agent

The Manager has appointed RBC Investor Services Ireland Limited ("the Transfer Agent”) as regestrar and
transfer agent for the Trust pursuant to the Registrar and Transfer Agent Agreement between the Trust and
the Transfer Agent. The day-to-day services provided to the Manager by the Transfer Agent include receiving
and processing subscription and redemption orders, allotting and issuing Units and maintaining the Unithalder
register for the Units. The Transfer Agent is paid a fee quarterly in arrears out of the Net Assets of the Trust.
The amount earned by the Transfer Agent was US332, 740 for the year under review (year ended 30 Movember
2019: US316,524).

Valuer

The Directors of the Manager have appointed Goldman Sachs & Co. LLC as its delegate to act as the Valuer
and the valuation function was performed by Controllers during the vear ended 30 November 2020 and year
ended 30 November 2019. Please also refer to MNote 4.

Net Realised and Unrealised Investment Gain/{Loss)

The net realized and unrealized investment gaindloss) from trading in financial assets and financial liabilities
shaown in the Statement of Comprehensive Income can be analysed as follows:

30-Nov-2020 30-Nov-2018
uss uss

Met realised (loss) on investments (15,354 327) (14,468.371)
Net realised investment (loss) {15,354,327) {14,488,371)
Met change in unrealised gain on investments 4,095,315 6,853,004
Nt change in unraalised investment gain 4,065,315 6,853,004

Unit Capital

The minimum initial subscription required in the case of the Trust shall not be less than USS100, EUR100 or
JEY10,000 unless othenwise determined by the Manager.

The relevant movemnents on Unit capital are shawn on the Statements of Changes in Met Assets Attributable
to Holders of Redeemable Paricipating Units. The Trust invests the proceeds from the issue of Units in
approprate investments while maintaining sufficient liquidity to meet redemptions when necessary.
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For the Year Ended 30 November 2020 {(continued)

9. Unit Capital (continued)
The following tables summarise the activity in the Trust's Units:

Balance at Balance at
1-Dec-2019 | Subscriptions | Redemptions 30-Nov-2020
Goldman Sachs Emerging Markets Debt Local Feeder _
Ordinary Unit Class 204,339 1,334 (26,623) 175,050
EUR Unit Class 43,231 39 (4.915) 38635
Yen Unit Class 233,871 22 883 (37.079) 215,775
Ordinary Unit Class Distributiors 17 402 597 2366 018 {3991 B33) 15,777 B82
Total 17,884,138 2,391,454 {4,080,250) 16,215,342
Balance at Balance at
1-Dec-2018 | Subscriptions | Redemptions 30-Nov-2018
Goldman Sachs Emerging Markets Debt Local Feeder
Ordinary Unit Class 247 777 16,074 {59.512) 204,339
EUR Unit Class 43167 2,198 (2.134) 43 231
Yen Unit Class 257 758 74 284 {98,071) 233971
| Ordinary Unit Class Distribution 13,073,286 7047 428 (2718119) 17,402,597
Total 13,621,988 7,139,982 (2877,832) 17,884,138

10. Net Asset Value (NAV)
The following tables summarise the Met Asset Value and the NAV per Unit of each Unit Class:

Goldman Sachs Emerging 30-Nov-2020

Markets Debt Local Feeder Het Asset Valie NAV Per Unit
Ordinary Unit Class USD 20134219 USD 112 4502
EUR Unit Clags EUR 5 380,041 EUR 1387356
Yen Unit Class JEY 907 196,747 JEY 41278412 |
Ordinary Unit Class Distribution USD 62,790,101 USD 3.9796
Goeldman Sachs Emerging 30-Nov-2019 _
Markets Debt Local Feeder Net Asset Value NAV Per Unit
Ordinary Unit Class USD 22 232 300 LISD 108 8017
EUR Unit Class EUR 6286212 EUR 145 63585
Yen Unit Class JFY 981,616,683 JPY 4,195 4707
Ordinary Unit Class Distribution UsD 75611.579 USD 4 3448
Goldman Sachs Emerging 30-Nov-2018

Markets Debt Local Feeder Het Asset Value NAY Per Unit |
Ordinary Unit Class USD 24 856 953 USD 1003201
EUR Unit Class EUR 5 644 505 EUR 1307700
Yen Unit Class JPY 1,034 420 348 JPY 4 0131447
Oirdinary Unit Class Distribution USD 58 253,905 USD 4 4567

11. Dividends

The Fund may declare and distribute dividends to Unithalders halding the Ordinary Unit Class Distribution out
aof its net income andier out of its realised prafits less realised and unrealised losses attributable to that Unit
Class for the relevant periad. The Ordinary Uit Class may declare and distribute drvidends on a monthly basis
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11. Dividends (continued)
The following dividends were declared by the Fund during the year ended 30 Movember 2020:
Ordinary Unit Class Distribution

Ex-Date Pay-Date | Description UsSD
16M12/2019__| 19/12/2019_| Dividend of USD 0.04 per Unit 598 564
15012020 | 21/01/2020_| Dividend of USD 0.04 per Unit B92, 796
18/02/2020 | 21/02/2020_| Dividend of USD 0.04 per Unit 706,121
16032020 | 190372020 | Dividend of USD 0.04 per Unit 670,842 |
15042020 | 200472020 | Dividend of USD 0.04 per Unit 564,350
15052020 | 200502020 | Dividend of USD 0.04 per Urit 563,037
15062020 | 18062020 | Dividend of USD 0.04 per Unit 54D 870
15/07/2020 | 200772020 | Dividend of USD D.04 per Unit 536,061
17/08/2020 | 20082020 | Dividend of USD 0.04 per Unit Gar, 436
15/00/2020 | 18/09/2020 | Dividend of USD 0.04 per Unit 533,638
15M02020 | 20102020 | Dividend of USD 0.04 per Unit 528 032
16/11/2020 | 19/11/2020_| Dividend of USD 0.04 per Unit 526,801

The fallowing dividends were declared by the Fund during the year ended 30 Novernber 2019
Ordinary Unit Class Distribution

Ex-Date Pay-Date | Description UsD
1TH2I2018 20M2r2018 | Dividend of USD 0,04 per Unit 518975
150152018 180172019 | Dividend of UISD 0.04 per Unit 524 716
15022018 21022019 | Dividend of LISD 0,04 per Unit 542,825
15032019 200372019 ) Dividend of USD 0.04 per Unit 532103
[ 15/04/2019 | 180472019 | Dividend of USD 0.04 per Unit 550,729
15052019 20052019 | Dividend of USD 0.04 per Unit 571,739
17062019 200672019 | Dividend of LISD 0.04 per Unit 596,091
16072018 180772019 | Dividend of USD 0.04 per Unit 600 250
16082019 21082019 | Dividend of USD 0.04 per Unit 644 552
17082019 20092019 | Dividend of USD 0.04 per Unit G638 116
15M 02019 181072019 | Dividend of USD 0.04 per Unit 563,062
151172019 20112019 | Dividend of LISD 0,04 per Unit G55, 163

12. Financial Investments and Associated Risks
The Fund invests all, or substantially all, of its assets in the Master Portfolio, as outlined in Mote 1.

The Fund's imeesting activities through the Master Portfolio expose it to vanous types of nisks that are
associated with the financial ivestments and markets in which it and the Master Portfolio imest (the
“Irvestment Risks").

The Fund’s irvestment portfolic is comprised of collective investment schemes at year end. The Board of the
Manager has appointed the Investment Adviser to manage the irvestment risks of the Fund. The main types
of financial risks which the Fund is expased to through the Master Portfalio are market risk, liguidity risk and
credit risk. The prospectus provides details of these and other types of risk, some of which are additional to
that infermation provided in these financial statements.

Azzet allocation of the Master Portfolio is determined by the Master Portfolio’s Investment Adviser, who
manages the alocation of assels to achieve the investment objectives as defailed in the Prospectus,
Achievernent of the Master Portfolio’s investment objectives imolves taking risks. The Master Portfolio’s
Investment Adviser exercises judgement based an analysis, research and risk management techniques when
making irvestment decisions, Divergence from the benchmark andior the target asset allocation and the
composition of the portfolio is monitared in accordance with the Master Portfalic's risk management policy,
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12, Financial Investments and Assoclated Risks (continued)
The risk management policies employed in relation to the Fund are outlined belaw:

{a) Market Risk

The potential for changes in the fair value of the Fund's irvestment in the Master Portfolio ie referred to as
market risk. Commonly used categories of market risk include cumrency risk, interest rate risk and other price

rigk.
(i} Currency risks may result from exposures to changes in spot prices, forward prces and volatiliies of
currency rates
(i) Interest rate risks may result from exposures to changes in the level, slope and curvature of the various

yield curves, the volatility of inferest rates, morigage prepayment speeds and credit spreads.

(i) Other price risks ane the risk that the value of an irmvestment will fluctuate as a result of changes in market
prices ather than those arising from currency sk or interest rate risk and may result from exposures to
changes in the prces and wolatiities of individual equities, equity baskets, equity indices and
cammodities,

The Master Portfolic's market risk strategy is driven by its investment risk and returm objectives

Market risk i= managed through the application of risk budgeting principles. The Investment Adviser
determines an appropriate rigk target, commenly referred to as Tracking Emor, employing a risk budgeting
framework.

The AMD Divisional Risk Management group at Gaoldman Sachs ("Divisional Risk’) is responsible for overall
risk governance structune and establishing appropriate risk management best practices. The risk governance
structure includes identifying, measuning, menitoring, escalating and remediating applicable nsks. AMD
Divisional Risk uses a number of risk metnics to monitor risks including manitonng sensitivities, volatility, and
VaR. The team presents or provides wrtten materials on the nisks to the Board no less frequently than
sermi-annually,

AMD Divisional Risk has taken the decision to align the shocks used in IFRS sensitivities calculations with the
regulatory-prescribed shocks in Form-PF, as determined by the SEC, for consistency and to streamline
reporting. AMD Divisional Risk will review the shocks periadically and revise as necessary.

(i} Currency Risk

The Master Portfalio, inwhich the Fund invests, may invest in financial investments and enter into transactions
denominated in currencies other than its functional currency. Consequently, the Master Porffolio may be
exposed o risks that the exchange rate of its functional currency relative to other foreign currencies may
change in a manner that has an adverse effect on the value of that portion of the Master Portfolio's assets or
liabilities denominated im currencies other than the functional currency’.

‘When an investor invests into a Unit clage which iz in a different currency to the functional currency of the
Fund inwhich it invests, the currency risk of the investor will be different to the currency risk of the Fund.

The following tables set forth a sensitivity analysis showing gains and losses in the Master Portfolio that would
be associated with changes in the currency markets This sensitivity analysis is based on a change in one
curfency versus the base currency of the Master Portfalio while hakding all ether currencies constant. For the
Master Portfolio, monetary and nor-rmonetary, the assumption is that all currencies move simultaneausly
against the base currency of the Master Portfolio

24
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Goldman Sachs Global Funds
Goldman Sachs Emerging Markets Debt Local Feeder
Motes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 November 2020 {(continued)

12

Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)
{a) Market Risk (continued)
(i} Currency Risk (continued)

At 30 Movemnber 2020 and 30 November 2019 the market moves for currencies represent a +- 10% move,

Currency Risk as at 30-Nov-2020

Base Currency is US$

Impact on NAV for 10% Base Currency
Currency Appreciation Depreciation
| BRL (0.9%) 0.8%
IR {1.0%) 1.0%
MXN (1.1%) 1,1%
RUB (0.8%) 0.8%
THB {0,9%) 0,9%
Other (5.3%) 6.3%
Total (11.0%]) 11.0%

Currency Risk as at 30-Nov-2018

Base Currency is USS

Impact on NAV for 10% Base Currency
Currency Appreciation Depreciation
CHF 1.0% (1.0%)
CZK, {1.0%) 1.0%
[ {1.4%) 1.4%
PLM (1.4%) 1.4%
RLUB {1.5%) 1.5%
Oiher [5.9%) 5.9%
Total [10.2%) 10.2%

The above analysis illustrates gains and losses in the Master Portfolio that are associated with changes in the
currency market that are reasonably possible over a one year period. These do not include stress scenanos
when market moves and changes in correlations. and liquidity may result in larger overall gaing of losses.

(i) Interest Rate Risk

The Master Portfolio, in which the Fund invests, may invest in ficed income securities. Any change to the
relevart irterest rates for particular securities may result in the Imvestment Adviser being unable to secure
similar returms on the expiny of the contracts or the sale of securities. In addition, changes to prevailing interest
rates or changes in expectations of future rates may result in an increase or decrease in the value of the
securities held In general, if interest rates rise, the value of the fixed income securnties will decline, A decline
in interest rates will in general have the opposite effect, All fixed income securities and floating rate securities,
together with their coupon and maturity date are disclosed in the Schedule of Investments of the Master
Fartfalio

The Master Portfolio may invest in instruments in desired currencies at fixed, floating and zero rates of interest.

The following tables set forth the interest rate exposwes for vanous currencies in the Master Portfolio and
gainz and losses that are associated with changes in the interest rates. This sensitivity analysis is basedon a
change in the interest rates applicable to ene currency while halding all other interest rates constant. Far the
Total Portfolio, the assumgtion is that all interest rates move simultaneously by the same number of basis
paints. A parallel shift of 50bps or 125bps means that all interest rates along a curve will change by either a
S0bps to 125bps increase or decrease (Le. a 0.50% or 1.25% increase or decrease)
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Motes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 November 2020 {(continued)

12, Financial Investments and Assoclated Risks (continued)
{a) Market Risk (continued)
(ii} Interest Rate Risk (continued)
At 30 Movember 2020 a positivefnegative parallel shift for interest rates represent a +/-30bps (as at 30

Mevemiber 2019: +L75bps) parallel shift in the vield curve for developed interest rates and a +/-125bps (as at
30 Movember 2019 +/-1250ps) parallel shift in the yield curve for emerging markets interest rates.

Interest Rate Risk as at 30-Mov-2020

Impact on HAV for parallel shift
Currency Higher Lower
ICR {0, 8%) 0.8%
MXM (0.9 0.9%
RUB {0.6%) 0.5%
THBE {1.0%) 1.0%
| ZAR (0.9%) 0.9%
Other (5.2%) 5.2%
Total Portfolio {9.4%] 8.4%

Interest Rate Risk as at 30-Mov-2018

Impact on NAV for parallel shift
Currency Higher Lower
IDR (0.8%) 0.8%
KRW {0.5%) 0.5%
| N {0.7%) 0.7%
THB {1.5%) 1.5%
| ZAR (0.5%) 0.9%
Other (3.5%) 3.0%
Total Portfolio (8.7%) B.7%

The above analys:s illustrates gains and losses that are associated with changes in the interest rate market
that are reasanably possible and exclude changes in the slope of bath interest and credit curves, These
scenanos also do not include stress scenarios when marke! moves and changes in correlations and liquidity
ey result in larger averall gains or losses

{iii) Other Price Risk

Other price risk is the risk that the value of a financial investment will fluctuate as a result of changes in market
prices, other than thase ansing from currency nsk of interest rate nisk whether caused by factors specific to an
individual investment, its issuer or any factor affecting financial investments traded in the market

Az the Master Porffolio’s financial investments are carmed at fair value with fair value changes recognised in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income, all changes in market condiions will directly affect Met Assets
Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units.

The Fund's investments in collective investment schemes are based upon the net asset values per share as
supplied by the collective investment schemes, inaccordance with the valuation policy of the applicable mutual
fund as outlined in its prospectus. While it is expected that the assets of the collective investment schemes
will generally be valued by an independent third party administrator or other service provider, there may be
circumstances in which certain securnities or other assets of a collective investment scheme may not have a
readily ascertainable market price. In such circumstances, the manager of the relevant collective inmvestment
scheme may be requined to value such secunities of instruments.
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12, Financial Investments and Assoclated Risks (continued)
(a) Market Risk (continued)

(iii} Other Price Risk (continued)

The Fund has no significant expasure to other price risk

Currency, interest rate and other price risks are managed by the Master Portfolio's Investment Adviser as part
of the integrated market risk management processes described above.

Dwring the yvear, an outbreak of a novel strain of coronavirus (COVID-19) emerged globally, Glebal financial
markets have experienced and may continue to experience significant volatility resulting from the spread of
COVID-19. The extent of the impact of COVID-19 on each Fund's performance will depend on future
developments, including the duration and continued spread of the outbreak.

{iv) Limitations of Sensitivity Analysis
Some of the limitations of the sensitivity analysis tables above include:

. the analysis iz based on historical data and cannot take account of the fact that future market price
movements, correlations between markets and levels of market liquidity may bear no relation to
historical palterns,

- the analysis is a relative estimate of risk rather than a precise and accurate number,
- the analysis represents a hypothetical outcome and is nat intended to be predictive; and
- future market conditions could vary significantly from those experenced in the past

(b) Ligquidity Risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in meeling obligations associated with financial
lizbilities that are settled by delivering cash or ancther financial asset. Among other things liquidity could be
impaired by an inability to access secured and for unsecured sowces of financing, an inability to sell assels
or unforeseen outflows of cash or collateral.

This situatisn may arise due to circumstances outside of the Fund's contral, such as a general market
disruption or an operational problem affecting the Fund or third parties, Also, the ability to sell assets may be
impaired if other market participants are seeking to sell similar assats at the same time,

The Fund's investment in the Master Portfolic may impose greater restrictions on redemptions than those
imposed by the Fund. This may inclede offering less frequent redemplion dates than are offered by the Fund
to itz Unitholders.

The Fund provides for the subscription and redemption of Units and it is therefore exposed to the liquidity risk
asgsociated with Unitholder redemplions in accordance with the berms in the Progpectus. These terms include
the discretion to pay redemption distributions in cash or in kind or to limit redemptions to 10% of the Met Asset
Value on any dealing day. Where redemption distributions are in kind the Unitholder may request that the
Investment Adviser sell the assets and distribute the cash proceeds to the Unitholder,

The Fund's prospectus provides for the daily subscription of Units and the daily redemplion of Uinits. The Fund
is therefore exposed to the liquidity risk of meeting Unithalder redemplions.

As at 30 November 2020, the Fund's investment in the Master Portfolio is 5.72% of the Master Portfolio's Net
Assets (as at 30 November 2019: 6.17%).

The following tables set forth details of the Unitholders with holdings greater than 10% of the Fund's MNet
Azgels,
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12, Financial Investments and Assoclated Risks [continued)
(b) Liquidity Risk {continued)

Goldman Sachs Emerging Markets Debt Local Feeder

20-Nov-2020 30-Mov-2019

Unitholder 1° 3% Unitholder 11 56%
Linitholder 2! 36% Unitholder 2 33%
Other Unitholders 1% Other Unitholders 1%
Total 100% Total 100%

Wnitholder is a distributor,

Mate: Unitholders are shown inorder of holding at the specific year end 20 Unitholder 1 on 30 Movember 2020
may not be the same as Unitholder 1 on 30 November 2019,

As at 30 November 2020 and 30 Movember 2014, financial liabilities were generally payable within three
manths of year end

Substantial redemption requests by Shareholders in a concentrated period of time could reguire a fund to
liquidate certain of its investrents mare rapidly than might othenvise be desirable in order to raise cash to
fund the redemptions and achieve a portfolio appropriately reflecting a smaller asset base. Substantial
redemption requests may limit the ability of the Investment Adviser to successfully implement the irvestment
program of @ fund and could negatively impact the value of the Shares being redeemed and the value of
Shares that remain outstanding.

The directers of the Campary andior of the Management Company may have certain iquidity management
toals available to them where permitted by the Fund's prospectus and constitutional dacuments and where
they consider the imposition of such tools to ba in the best interests of both remaining and redeaming investors,
This may include the application of redemption gates, tempaorary suspension of redemptions or the imposition
of liquidity charges (subject to any required approvals of the regulator and engagement with sharehaoldiers),

() Credit Risk

Credit and counterparty nisks are the risk that one party to a financial imvestment will cause a financial loss for
the other party by failing to discharge an abligation.

Procedures have been adopled to reduce credit risk related to s dealings with counterparties, Before
transacting with any counterparty, the Investmenrt Adviser or its related parties evaluate both credit-warthiness
and reputation by conducting a credit analysis of the party, their business and reputation. The credit risk of
appraved counterparties is then monitored on an ongoing basis, including percdic reviews of financial
statements and interim financial reports as neadead,

The Fund, and the Master Portfolio in which it invests, are subject to a number of risks relating to the insolvency,
administration, iquidation ar other formal protection from creditors (“insabency”) of the Depositary. These nisks
inzlude without limitation:

i. The loss of all cagh held with the Depositany which is nat being treated as client money at the level of the
Depasitary ("client money™).

il. Theloss of all cash which the Depositary has failed to treat as client money inaccordance with procedures
(if any) agreed with the Trust

ii. The loes of some or all of any securities held on trust which have mot been properly segregated and so
identified both at the level of the Depositany (" Trust Assets”™) or client money held by or with the Depositary.
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12, Financial Investments and Assoclated Risks (continued)
{c) Credit Risk {continued)

v, The loss of some or all assets due to the incorrest operation of accounts by the Depositary or due ta the
process of identifying and transferring the relevant Trust Assets andfor chient maoney including army
deduction to meet the adminigtrative costs of an insolvency.

v. Losses caused by prolonged delays in receiving transfers of balances and regaining control over the
relevant assels.

Aninsclvency could cause severe disruplion to the Fund's investment activity. In some circumstances, this
could cause the Directors of the Manager to temporarily sugpend the calculation of the Met Asset Value and
dealings in Units.

At 30 Movember 2020 and 30 Movember 2018, the following financial assets of the Fund were exposed to
credit risk: imvestments, cash and other receivables. The carmying amounts of financial assets best reflect the

maximurn credit risk exposure at the reparting date,

The maximum exposure 1o credit fisk as at the reponting date can be analysed as follows,

30-Mov-2020 30-Nov-2018
Assets uss uss
Irvestments - Long 98 344 098 1142188915
Cash 1,780 183
Reimbursemnent from Investment Adviger - 25075
| Receivable for Units sold 191,234 781,055
Recenable for imvestments sold 122,701 38,322
[ Total Assets 98,668,813 | 115,063,553

The table below sets forth concentrations of counterparty or issuer credit risk greater than 5% of the Net Assets
Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units

Year ended 30-Nov-2020 Year ended 30-Nov-2018
% of %% of
Met Met
Institution Capacity Assets institution Capacity Assets
Gaoldman Sachs Goldman Sachs
Emerging Markets Debl Emerging Markets Debt
Local Fortfolio (a sub- Collective Local Portfolio (a sub- Collective
fund of Goldman Sachs | Investment fund of Goldman Sachs | Investment
Funds SICAY) Scheme 100,31% | Funds SICA\V)! Scheme 100.41%

"Related Party to Goldman Sachs Global Funds.

Mo courterparties or issuers are rated below irvestmert grade, Counterparties of issuers are either rated
investment grade in their own right or if not rated then an entity in the corporate family tree has such a rating
and the Credit Risk Management and Advisory depadment of the Investment Adviser balieves thera is strang
implicit support from the rated entity to the counterparty
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12, Financial Investments and Assoclated Risks (continued)

13.

{d) Additional Risks

{iy Concentration Risk

The Fund may invest in a limited number of imvestments and imvestment themes. A consequence of a limited
number of investments is that perfformance may be more favourably or unfavourably affected by the
performance of an individual imestment.

(i) OCperational Risk

Operaticnal rigk is the potential for loss caused by a deficiency in information, communications, transaction
processing and settlement, and accounting systems. The Trust's service providers as shown on page 2 maintain
controls and procedures for the purpose of helping to manage operational risk. Reviews of the service levels of
senvice providers are performed on a regular basis by the Management Company. No assurance is given that
these measures will be 100% effective.

(i) Legal Tax and Regulatory Risks
Legal, tax and regulatory changes could occur during the duration of the Trust which may adversely affect the
Fund.

With respect to tax, the Fund may be subject to taxation on capital gains, interest and dividends in ceain
juriscictions where the Fund invests.

The interpretation and applicability of the tax law and regulatiors by tax authorities at times may not be clear or
consistert, Tax obligations where probable and estimable are recorded as labilties, However, some tax
obligations are subject to uncerainty and may result in additional tax liakilities, interest and penalties based on
fidure actions, interpretations or judgements of these authoribes covering current and past tax pasitions
Accounting standards may also change, creating or removing an obligation for the Trust to accrue for a polential
tax lability. Consequently, it is possible that certain potential tax obligatiors which currendly are not probable
may become sowhich may result in additional tax liabilities for a Trustin the future and these additional iatalities
may be material. Because of the foregoing uncertainties, the NAY may not reflect the tax liabilities ultimately
borne by the Trust, including at the time of any subscriptions, redemptions or exchanges of interests in the
Trust, which could have an adverse impact on investors at that time.

Additional details of risks not disclesed in these Financial Statements can be found in the Prospectus.
Credit Institutions

Cash is held at the following institutions:

Counterparty 30-Nov-2020 30-Nov-2018

Uze Uss % of Net Assets USS | % of Net Assels
State Street Bank and Trust (&)
Company (b) 1,780 0.00% 183 0.00%
Total 1,780 0.00% 183 0.00%

(&) Unrestricted - Depositary Cash Account
{b) State Street Bank and Trust Company acts as the Global Depositary for State Street Custodial Services
{Ireland) Limited.
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14,

15,

16.

17.

18.

19

20.

21.

23

Cash Flow Statement

The Trust has elected to apply the exemption available to open-ended imvestment funds under FRS 102, Section
7 “Staternent of Cash Flows®, not to prepare a cash flow statement.

Statement of Changes in the Portfolio

The Material Portfolio Changes reflect the aggregate purchases of a secwrity exceeding one per cent of the total
value of purchases for the period and aggregate disposals greater than one per cent of the total value of the
sales. The Material Portfolioc Changes are shown on page 32.

Exchange Rates

The following exchange rates (against the LISS) were used to convert the investments and other assets and
liabilities denominated in currencies other than the USS:

Currency 30-Now-2020 30-Nov=-2019

uss uss
Euro (EUR) 0835981 0 906847
Japanese Yen [JFY) 104, 275000 109510000

Soft Commissions and Directed Brokerage

The Fund did not enter into any third pary soft commission arangements, or pay commissions for research
andfor execution for the year ended 30 Novemnber 2020 and year ended 30 Movernber 2019

Contingent Liabilities
There were no contingent liabilities as at 30 Movember 2020 and 30 Movember 2014,

Prospectus
The latest prospectus of the Trust was issued on 28 February 2019,

Significant Events during the year

Diuring the year, global markets experienced a significant increase involatility across all financial instruments as
a result of the COVID-19 pandemc. The situation is being actively monitored and any significant developments
pertaining to changes in the operation of the Funds will be communicated to imestors,

Mr. Huga Macheill retired as a member of the Board of Directors of the Manager as of 9 March 2020,

Mr. Mick Phillips was appointed as a member of the Board of Directors of the Manager as of 7 August 2020

Subsequent Events
There have been na significant events affecting the Trust since 30 Movember 2020

Indemnifications

The Trust may enter into contracts that contain a variety of indemnifications. The Trust's maximum exposure
under these arrangements is unknown. However, the Trust has not had prior claims or losses pursuant to these
caniracts.

Approval of the Audited Financial Statements
The Board of Directors of the Manager approved the Audited Financial Statements on 24 March 2021.

iy
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Schedule of Investments

As at 30 November 2020
Investments — Long
Fair Value %% of
Holdings  Description US$ Met Assets
UCITS Collective Investment Schemes
United States Dollar
Goldman Sachs Emerging Markets Debt Local
3TE7T9,731  Portfolio - Class “|XC" Share Clags e B8 344 098 100,31
Total UCITS Collective Investment Schemes 98,344 008 100.31
Total Investments — Long 28,344 098 100.31
30-Nov-2020 30-Mov-2019
Fair Value % of Fair Value % of
USE Met Assets USS MNet Assets
Total Investments
Investments - Long 95, 344 008 100.31 114 218 915 100.41
Cther Assets and Liabilities (308 060) {0.31) (459 024) {0.41)
Net Assets Attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Participating Units 98,036,038 10:0.00 113,748,881 100.00
Analysis of Total Assets (Unaudited) % of Total Assets
UCITS Collective Investment Schemes 99 68
Other current assels 0.32
Taotal assets 100.00

far A related party to the Trust.
8 The Fund is invested in the non-Investment Advisory fee bearing share class of the Master Portfolio.

The accomparying notes farm an integral part of the financial statements.

1
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2020 11 30

1,643,438,063 181,945,028
516,563 57,189
61,095,179 6,763,847
140,286 15,531
11,840,867 1,310,902
3,134,174 346,984
1,417,722 156,956
36,278,265 4,016,367
37,263,885 4,125,485
366,706 40,598
1,560,079 172,716
1,368 151
24,847,455 2,750,862
2,439,545 270,082
177,670 19,670

862 95
1,824,518,689 201,992,464

188/290



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1,605 178
38,100,001 4,218,051
40,013,255 4,429,867

12,881 1,426
4,795,367 530,895
1,074,632 118,973

539,388 59,716
21,171,346 2,343,880
381,152 42,197
1,637,110 181,244
63,391 7,018
880,544 97,485
126,794 14,037
256,862 28,437
3,951 437
41,066 4,546
31,977 3,540
175,829 19,466

24,309 2,691

14,644 1,621

25,499 2,823

23,412 2,592

15,139 1,676

2,363 262

23,016 2,548

14,957 1,656

37,558 4,158

28,654 3,172

109,516,702 12,124,594
1,715,001,987 189,867,870
1,715,001,987 189,867,870
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2020 11 30

452,304 50,075
88,268,079 9,772,159
2,823,664 312,608
(710,525) (78,662)
90,833,522 10,056,179
4,642 514
11,231,374 1,243,425
583,510 64,600
308,275 34,129
50,287 5,567
95,066 10,525
184,748 20,453
24,346 2,695
181,602 20,105
13,313 1,474
30,472 3,374
10,034 1,111
26,830 2,970
8,632 956
22,223 2,460
23,189 2,567
41,936 4,643
126,936 14,053
12,967,415 1,435,623
12,967,415 1,435,623
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463,290 51,291
77,402,817 8,569,266
34,457,893 3,814,833

2,076,082 229,843

(167,464,971) (18,540,047)
15,424,186 1,707,612
(5,941,566) (657,791)

(121,448,376) (13,445,550)
92,410,446 10,230,760

189,588 20,989
516,563 57,189
25,738,220 2,849,478
3,061,661 338,956
661,628 73,249
122,578,106 13,570,622
78,532,547 8,694,338
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2020 11 30

1,850,523,317 204,871,436
677,706,028 75,028,834

(808,325,981) (89,489,769)

78,532,547 8,694,338

(83,433,924) (9,236,970)

2020 11 30 1,715,001,987 189,867,870
1,715,001,987 189,867,870
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2020 11 30
@ (O]

76.40
1,536,493 Argentina Government International Bond(c) usD 0.125 09/07/2030 604,610 0.04
3,911,303 Argentina Government International Bond(¢) usb 0.125 09/07/2035 1,398,291 0.08
2,002,901 0.12
620,000 Bermuda Government International Bond usb 2.375 20/08/2030 646,040 0.04
580,000 Bermuda Government International Bond usb 3.375 20/08/2050 617,337 0.03
1,263,377 0.07
3,270,000 Banco do Brasil S.A.(® usb 6.250 Perp. 3,295,179 0.19
7,534,000 Brazil Notas do Tesouro Nacional-Series B BRL 6.000 15/08/2040 6,112,029 0.36
54,644,000 Brazil Notas do Tesouro Nacional-Series F BRL 10.000 01/01/2025 11,938,494 0.69
600,000 BRF S.A. usb 5.750 21/09/2050 631,406 0.04
21,977,108 1.28
200,000 Easy Tactic Ltd. usb 8.625 27/02/2024 176,219 0.01
390,000 Fortune Star BVI Ltd. usb 6.850 02/07/2024 410,962 0.03
200,000 Fortune Star BVI Ltd. usb 5.950 19/10/2025 205,000 0.01
200,000 FPC Resources Ltd. usb 4.375 11/09/2027 207,625 0.01
1,110,000 Huarong Finance 2019 Co., Ltd. usb 3.625 30/09/2030 1,154,568 0.07
2,930,000 Huarong Finance Il Co., Ltd. usb 5.500 16/01/2025 3,285,230 0.19
200,000 Joy Treasure Assets Holdings, Inc. usb 2.750 17/11/2030 201,738 0.01
270,000 Studio City Finance Ltd. usb 6.000 15/07/2025 284,850 0.02
200,000 Studio City Finance Ltd. usb 6.500 15/01/2028 213,000 0.01
6,139,192 0.36
310,000 Country Garden Holdings Co., Ltd. usb 3.875 22/10/2030 313,487 0.02
400,000 DP World Crescent Ltd. usb 4.848 26/09/2028 457,000 0.03
2,100,000 DP World Salaam(d) usb 6.000 Perp. 2,285,062 0.13
290,000 Fantasia Holdings Group Co., Ltd. usb 9.875 19/10/2023 289,638 0.02
920,000 Grupo Aval Ltd. usb 4.375 04/02/2030 952,890 0.05
300,000 Kaisa Group Holdings Ltd. usb 11.950 22/10/2022 315,750 0.02
220,000 Meituan Dianping "B" usb 3.050 28/10/2030 228,095 0.01
320,000 Sunac China Holdings Ltd. usb 8.350 19/04/2023 335,500 0.02
200,000 Yuzhou Group Holdings Co., Ltd. usb 7.700 20/02/2025 208,875 0.01
300,000 Zhenro Properties Group Ltd.(d) usb 10.250 Perp. 308,578 0.02
5,694,875 0.33
13,875,000,000 Bonos de la Tesoreria de la Republica en pesos CLP 4.500 01/03/2021 18,527,959 1.08
6,967,240,800 Bonos de la Tesoreria de la Republica en pesos CLP 1.500 01/03/2026 10,361,250 0.60
10,975,000,000 Bonos de la Tesoreria de la Republica en pesos CLP 4.500 01/03/2026 16,615,410 0.97
14,595,000,000 Bonos de la Tesoreria de la Republica en pesos CLP 5.000 01/03/2035 22,912,170 1.34
13,385,000,000 2zzz§;fe la Tesoreria de la Republica en pesos cLp 4.000 01/03/2023 19,024,413 111
1,135,000,000 ?222?;?6 la Tesoreria de la Republica en pesos CLP 4.700 01/09/2030 1,751,321 0.10
2,104,687,325 ?8$gs del Banco Central de Chile en UE-Series CcLP 3.000 01/03/2022 2,958,163 0.17
92,150,686 5.37
432,610,000 gggicultural Development Bank of China-Series CNY 2.960 17/04/2030 61,741,073 3.60
163,980,000 China Development Bank-Series 2010 CNY 3.090 18/06/2030 23,693,710 1.38
275,570,000 China Government Bond CNY 2.850 04/06/2027 40,901,057 2.39
126,335,840 7.37
1,500,000 Banco de Bogota S.A. usb 6.250 12/05/2026 1,707,225 0.10
13,044,000,000 Colombia Government International Bond CoP 4.375 21/03/2023 3,729,379 0.22
20,407,300,000 Colombian TES-Series B CoP 6.250 26/11/2025 6,252,016 0.36
128,993,200,000 Colombian TES-Series B CoP 7.500 26/08/2026 41,645,995 2.43
44,203,800,000 Colombian TES-Series B CoP 5.750 03/11/2027 13,013,113 0.76
55,226,300,000 Colombian TES-Series B CoP 6.000 28/04/2028 16,411,450 0.95
30,378,800,000 Colombian TES-Series B CoP 7.000 30/06/2032 9,233,989 0.54
28,903,000,000 Colombian TES-Series B cop 7.250 26/10/2050 8,524,133 0.50
100,517,300 5.86
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2,260,000 Croatia Government International Bond EUR 1.500 17/06/2031 2,924,473 0.17
421,500,000 Czech Republic Government Bond-Series 100 CZK 0.250 10/02/2027 18,465,032 1.08
240,080,000 Czech Republic Government Bond-Series 103 CZK 2.000 13/10/2033 11,878,955 0.69
528,560,000 Czech Republic Government Bond-Series 120 CZK 1.250 14/02/2025 24,756,385 1.45

79,920,000 Czech Republic Government Bond-Series 121 CZK 1.200 13/03/2031 3,636,385 0.21
117,430,000 Czech Republic Government Bond-Series 49 CZK 4.200 04/12/2036 7,563,662 0.44
66,300,419 3.87

79,900,000 Dominican Republic Bond DOP 12.000 05/03/2032 1,680,655 0.10
191,550,000 Dominican Republic International Bond DOP 8.900 15/02/2023 3,364,907 0.20
119,600,000 Dominican Republic International Bond DOP 11.375 06/07/2029 2,314,027 0.13
2,510,000 Dominican Republic International Bond usb 5.875 30/01/2060 2,629,617 0.15
9,989,206 0.58

200,000 Egypt Government International Bond usb 4.550 20/11/2023 205,281 0.01
280,000 Egypt Government International Bond EUR 4.750 11/04/2025 341,437 0.02
640,000 Egypt Government International Bond usb 6.588 21/02/2028 686,900 0.04
170,000 Egypt Government International Bond EUR 5.625 16/04/2030 205,995 0.01
1,790,000 Egypt Government International Bond usb 8.875 29/05/2050 1,996,689 0.12
3,436,302 0.20

250,000 Bank of East Asia Ltd.(@ usb 5.825 Perp. 261,000 0.01
820,000 CNAC HK Finbridge Co., Ltd. usb 3.000 22/09/2030 780,199 0.05
1,041,199 0.06

6,142,260,000 Hungary Government Bond-Series 26/D HUF 2.750 22/12/2026 21,942,720 1.28
2,508,410,000 Hungary Government Bond-Series 27/A HUF 3.000 27/10/2027 9,143,078 0.53
3,978,240,000 Hungary Government Bond-Series 30/A HUF 3.000 21/08/2030 14,380,596 0.84
1,000,000 MFB Magyar Fejlesztesi Bank Zrt EUR 1.375 24/06/2025 1,247,719 0.07
46,714,113 2.72

550,000 Reliance Industries Ltd. Usb 4.125 28/01/2025 610,242 0.04
11,000,000 Indonesia Treasury Bond- Series FR64 IDR 6.125 15/05/2028 785 0.00
107,345,000,000 Indonesia Treasury Bond-Series FR70 IDR 8.375 1570372024 8,404,384 0.49
540,000 Perusahaan Gas Negara Tbk PT usb 5.125 16/05/2024 599,315 0.04
9,004,484 0.53

310,000 Gohl Capital Ltd. Usb 4.250 24/01/2027 325,500 0.02
710,000 Leviathan Bond Ltd. 144A(®) usb 5.750 30/06/2023 749,050 0.04
370,000 Leviathan Bond Ltd. 144A(®) usb 6.750 30/06/2030 407,000 0.03
1,156,050 0.07

400,000 SoftBank Group Corp. Usb 5.125 19/09/2027 417,500 0.02
320,000 Galaxy Pipeline Assets Bidco Ltd. usb 2.625 31/03/2036 331,600 0.02
570,000 Galaxy Pipeline Assets Bidco Ltd. usb 3.250 30/09/2040 591,731 0.03
923,331 0.05

200,000 Axiata Spv5 Labuan Ltd. Usb 3.064 19/08/2050 201,344 0.01
1,440,000 MTN Mauritius Investments Ltd. UsD 4.755 11/11/2024 1,500,975 0.09
880,000 Banco Mercantil del Norte S_A.(d) usb 6.750 Perp. 929,500 0.05
700,000 Banco Mercantil del Norte S.A.(® usD 7.625 Perp. 761,250 0.04
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48,665,200 Mexican Bonos-Series M MXN 8.000 05/09/2024 2,693,523 0.16
95,317,000 Mexican Bonos-Series M MXN 5.750 05/03/2026 4,892,844 0.29
136,731,100 Mexican Bonos-Series M MXN 7.750 29/05/2031 7,835,947 0.46
56,467,800 Mexican Bonos-Series M MXN 7.750 23/11/2034 3,225,576 0.19
123,130,400 Mexican Bonos-Series M MXN 8.000 07/11/2047 6,901,266 0.40
591,389,200 Mexican Bonos-Series M 20 MXN 8.500 31/05/2029 35,272,746 2.06
246,883,300 Mexican Bonos-Series M 30 MXN 10.000 20/11/2036 16,719,419 0.98
344,294,000 Mexican Bonos-Series M 30 MXN 8.500 18/11/2038 20,476,083 1.19
2,140,000 Mexico City Airport Trust usb 3.875 30/04/2028 2,063,763 0.12
1,190,000 Mexico City Airport Trust usb 5.500 31/10/2046 1,152,441 0.07
3,460,000 Mexico Government International Bond usb 2.659 24/05/2031 3,472,110 0.20
1,620,000 Mexico Government International Bond usb 3.771 24/05/2061 1,615,950 0.09
720,000 Petroleos Mexicanos usb 6.875 16/10/2025 751,126 0.04
108,763,544 6.34
340,000 Mongolia Government International Bond UsD 5.125 07/04/2026 359,975 0.02
430,000 Bharti Airtel International Netherlands BV usb 5.125 11/03/2023 460,100 0.03
530,000 Lukoil International Finance BV usb 4.750 02/11/2026 602,792 0.03
450,000 Lukoil Securities BV usb 3.875 06/05/2030 486,563 0.03
200,000 Minejesa Capital BV usb 4.625 10/08/2030 214,250 0.01
230,000 PPF Telecom Group BV EUR 2.125 31/01/2025 281,031 0.02
275,000 PPF Telecom Group BV EUR 3.250 29/09/2027 351,593 0.02
1,300,000 Prosus NV usb 3.680 21/01/2030 1,419,990 0.08
650,000 Prosus NV usb 4.027 03/08/2050 693,875 0.04
4,510,194 0.26
890,000 Nigeria Government International Bond usb 6.500 28/11/2027 935,195 0.05
410,000 Nigeria Government International Bond usb 7.143 23/02/2030 432,935 0.03
1,368,130 0.08
114,940,000 Banco de Credito del Peru PEN 4.650 17/09/2024 33,983,928 1.98
22,150,000 Peru Government Bond(®) PEN 5.940 12/02/2029 7,481,738 0.44
10,525,000 Peru Government Bond(e) PEN 6.150 12/08/2032 3,450,870 0.20
32,550,000 Peru Government Bond(®) PEN 5.400 12/08/2034 9,766,061 0.57
15,875,000 Peru Government Bond(e) PEN 5.350 12/08/2040 4,478,879 0.26
4,949,000 Peruvian Government International Bond PEN 6.950 12/08/2031 1,734,127 0.10
1,530,000 Peruvian Government International Bond usb 2.780 01/12/2060 1,510,875 0.09
1,730,000 Peruvian Government International Bond usb 3.230 28/07/2121 1,709,240 0.10
64,115,718 3.74
200,000 International Container Terminal Services, Inc. USD 4.750 17/06/2030 215,250 0.01
35,890,000 Philippine Government Bond-Series 1063 PHP 6.250 22/03/2028 910,070 0.05
76,580,000 Philippine Government Bond-Series 1064 PHP 6.875 10/01/2029 2,047,258 0.12
10,000,000 Philippine Government International Bond PHP 3.900 26/11/2022 212,501 0.01
35,000,000 Philippine Government International Bond PHP 6.250 14/01/2036 939,045 0.06
200,000 SMC Global Power Holdings Corp.(® usD 7.000 Perp. 205,875 0.01
4,529,999 0.26
189,500,000 Poland Government Bond-Series 425 PLN 0.750 25/04/2025 51,557,758 3.01
78,310,000 Poland Government Bond-Series 428 PLN 2.750 25/04/2028 23,721,956 1.38
96,830,000 Poland Government Bond-Series 727 PLN 2.500 25/07/2027 28,810,031 1.68
104,089,745 6.07
50,670,000 Romania Government Bond-Series 15Y RON 3.650 24/09/2031 12,641,860 0.74
41,130,000 Romania Government Bond-Series 5Y RON 3.650 28/07/2025 10,514,933 0.61
13,710,000 Romania Government Bond-Series 8Y RON 4.150 26/01/2028 3,606,543 0.21
1,410,000 Romanian Government International Bond EUR 3.624 26/05/2030 2,002,154 0.12
650,000 Romanian Government International Bond usb 3.000 14/02/2031 697,023 0.04
2,470,000 Romanian Government International Bond EUR 2.000 28/01/2032 3,086,618 0.18
1,630,000 Romanian Government International Bond usb 4.000 14/02/2051 1,786,633 0.10
34,335,764 2.00
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50,030,000 Russian Federal Bond - OFZ Bonds-Series 6218 RUB 8.500 17/09/2031 790,908 0.05
921,260,000 Russian Federal Bond - OFZ Bonds-Series 6221 RUB 7.700 23/03/2033 13,788,635 0.80
776,900,000 Russian Federal Bond - OFZ Bonds-Series 6224 RUB 6.900 23/05/2029 11,061,280 0.64

2,531,540,000 Russian Federal Bond - OFZ Bonds-Series 6226 RUB 7.950 07/10/2026 37,736,246 2.20
2,547,230,000 Russian Federal Bond - OFZ Bonds-Series 6228 RUB 7.650 10/04/2030 38,035,064 2.22
670,260,000 Russian Federal Bond - OFZ Bonds-Series 6230 RUB 7.700 16/03/2039 10,206,184 0.60
275,070,000 Russian Federal Bond - OFZ Bonds-Series 6232 RUB 6.000 06/10/2027 3,718,072 0.22
1,454,050,000 Russian Federal Bond - OFZ Bonds-Series 6235 RUB 5.900 12/03/2031 19,097,542 1.11
134,433,931 7.84

1,070,000 Serbia International Bond EUR 3.125 15/05/2027 1,439,145 0.08
200,000 Trafigura Group Pte Ltd.(d) usb 6.875 Perp. 196,438 0.01
216,190,000 South Africa Government Bond-Series 2030 ZAR 8.000 31/01/2030 13,230,751 0.77
163,395,000 South Africa Government Bond- Series 2032 ZAR 8.250 31/03/2032 9,414,687 0.55
404,824,000 South Africa Government Bond-Series 2035 ZAR 8.875 28/02/2035 22,886,756 1.33
321,950,000 South Africa Government Bond-Series 2037 ZAR 8.500 31/01/2037 17,132,012 1.00
410,847,300 South Africa Government Bond-Series 2040 ZAR 9.000 31/01/2040 22,376,173 1.31
134,590,000 South Africa Government Bond- Series 2044 ZAR 8.750 31/01/2044 7,012,451 0.41

86,150,000 South Africa Government Bond-Series 2048 ZAR 8.750 28/02/2048 4,492,860 0.26
542,640,000 South Africa Government Bond-Series R186 ZAR 10.500 21/12/2026 41,207,182 2.40
178,440,000 South Africa Government Bond-Series R213 ZAR 7.000 28/02/2031 9,765,913 0.57

147,518,785 8.60

6,400,000 E:ﬁﬁern & Southern African Trade & Development USD 4.875 23/05/2024 6,685,888 0.39
780,000 PTT Treasury Center Co., Ltd. usb 3.700 16/07/2070 815,222 0.05
360,000 PTTEP Treasury Center Co., Ltd. usb 2.587 10/06/2027 376,031 0.02
896,125,128 Thailand Government Bond THB 1.200 14/07/2021 29,560,700 1.72
402,220,000 Thailand Government Bond THB 3.850 12/12/2025 15,283,949 0.89
206,270,000 Thailand Government Bond THB 3.580 17/12/2027 8,072,871 0.47
745,334,556 Thailand Government Bond THB 1.250 12/03/2028 23,950,923 1.40

92,470,000 Thailand Government Bond THB 3.650 20/06/2031 3,712,362 0.22
716,220,000 Thailand Government Bond THB 3.775 25/06/2032 29,345,590 1.71
267,190,000 Thailand Government Bond THB 3.400 17/06/2036 10,882,378 0.64
449,730,000 Thailand Government Bond THB 3.300 17/06/2038 18,220,593 1.06

19,670,000 Thailand Government Bond THB 3.600 17/06/2067 854,048 0.05

141,074,667 8.23
103,600,000 Turkey Government Bond TRY 12.200 18/01/2023 13,049,412 0.76

27,545,000 Turkey Government Bond TRY 16.200 14/06/2023 3,770,874 0.22

52,555,000 Turkey Government Bond TRY 8.800 27/09/2023 6,095,331 0.36

15,460,000 Turkey Government Bond TRY 10.600 11/02/2026 1,890,962 0.11
117,490,000 Turkey Government Bond TRY 11.000 24/02/2027 14,415,674 0.84

1,760,000 Turkiye Vakiflar Bankasi TAO usb 5.250 05/02/2025 1,703,900 0.10
2,560,000 Yapi ve Kredi Bankasi AS usb 8.250 15/10/2024 2,764,800 0.16
43,690,953 2.55

2,530,000 Ukraine Government International Bond EUR 4.375 27/01/2030 2,852,770 0.17
290,000 Ukraine Government International Bond usb 7.253 15/03/2033 309,076 0.02
3,161,846 0.19

400,000 DP World Plc. usb 5.625 25/09/2048 489,187 0.03
130,000 DP World Plc. 144A(®) usb 6.850 02/07/2037 172,636 0.01
661,823 0.04

1,860,000 Gazprom PJSC Via Gaz Finance Plc.(d) usb 4.599 Perp. 1,951,837 0.11
200,000 Vedanta Resources Ltd. usb 6.125 09/08/2024 128,000 0.01
2,079,837 0.12
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1,530,000 Sasol Financing USA LLC UsD 5.875 27/03/2024 1,584,267 0.09
88,975,000 Uruguay Government International Bond uyu 8.500 15/03/2028 2,196,068 0.13
55,138,796 Uruguay Government International Bond uyu 4.375 15/12/2028 1,475,316 0.09
53,058,643 Uruguay Government International Bond uyu 3.875 02/07/2040 1,446,884 0.08

5,118,268 0.30
1,299, 450,766 1,310,345,334 76.40
4.25
Goldman Sachs US$ Treasury Liquid Reserves Fund
72,861,409 (X Distribution Class)(D(@) 72,861,409 4.25
72,861,400 72,861,409 4.25
1,372,312,175 1,383,206,743 80.65
@ (O]
10.36
960,000 Tengizchevroil Finance Co. International Ltd. usb 2.625 15/08/2025 992,160 0.06
300,000 Tengizchevroil Finance Co. International Ltd. usb 3.250 15/08/2030 313,500 0.02
1,305,660 0.08
480,000 BRF S.A. UsD 4.875 24/01/2030 511,500 0.03
200,000 Sociedad Quimica y Minera de Chile S_A. USb 4.250 22/01/2050 224,531 0.01
187,800,000,000 Indonesia Treasury Bond-Deutsche Bank AG 144A(®)  IDR 8.375 19/03/2024 14,703,463 0.85
73,400,000,000 Indonesia Treasury Bond-Deutsche Bank AG 144A(®) DR 8.250 19/05/2036 5,796,105 0.34
20,499,568 1.19
108,401,000,000 1zg§2§?|a Treasury Bond- JPMorgan Chase Bank NA I0R 8.375 15/03/2024 8,487,061 0.49
124,530,000,000 12222§f|a Treasury Bond-JPMorgan Chase Bank NA I0R 8.375 17/09/2026 10,027,664 0.58
109,298,000,000 12222§?|a Treasury Bond- JPMorgan Chase Bank NA 10R 7,000 17/05/2027 8,243,794 0.48
84,680,000,000 1zg§2§fla Treasury Bond- JPMorgan Chase Bank NA I0R 7,000 18/09/2030 6,356,997 0.37
171,863,000,000 1222?§f|a Treasury Bond- JPMorgan Chase Bank NA 10R 6.500 15/02/2031 12,536,748 0.73
207,584 ,000,000 12222§?|a Treasury Bond- JPMorgan Chase Bank NA I0R 8.750 17/05/2031 17,310,918 1.01
392,838,000,000 122225;;? Treasury Bond- JPMorgan Chase Bank NA I0R 7500 17/06/2035 29,977,546 1.75
472,920,000,000 1222?§f|a Treasury Bond- Standard Chartered Bank I0R 9.000 20/03/2029 39,370,925 2 30
124,000,000,000 12222§f|a Treasury Bond- Standard Chartered Bank I0R 7.500 19/08/2032 9,374,646 0.55
141,686,299 8.26
200,000 Millicom International Cellular S.A. usb 4.500 27/04/2031 216,622 0.01
400,000 Rede D' or Finance SARL usb 4.500 22/01/2030 414,000 0.03
630,622 0.04
830,000 Banco Santander Mexico S.A. Institucion de Banca
Multiple Grupo usb 5.375 17/04/2025 940,315 0.06
Financiero Santander
1,000,000 BBVA Bancomer S.A.(d) usb 5.125 18/01/2033 1,047,500 0.06
310,000 Cemex SAB de CV usb 5.450 19/11/2029 339,644 0.02
650,000 Cemex SAB de CV usb 5.200 17/09/2030 707,499 0.04
200,000 Industrias Penoles SAB de CV usb 4.750 06/08/2050 221,000 0.01
3,255,958 0.19
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860,000 Banco Latinoamericano de Comercio Exterior S.A. USD 2.375 14/09/2025 882,721 0.05
670,000 Banco Nacional de Panama usb 2.500 11/08/2030 669,163 0.04
1,551,884 0.09
54,704,000,000 Indonesia Treasury Bond-JPMorgan Chase Bank NA IDR 10.500 19/08/2030 4,988,059 0.29
7,763,000,000 1zi§2§?|a Treasury Bond- JPMorgan Chase Bank NA I0R 8.250 19/05/2036 613,013 0.04
5,601,072 0.33
74,110,000 Petroleos de Venezuela S.A. usb 6.000 28/10/2022 2,371,520 0.14
20,000 Petroleos de Venezuela S.A. usb 6.000 15/11/2026 750 0.00
2,372,270 0.14
217,958,787 177,639,364 10.36
217,958,787 177,639,364 10.36
4.82
45,260,000 Dominican Republic Central Bank Notes DOP 11.000 15/09/2023 845,809 0.05
39,222,000 Peruvian Government International Bond PEN 8.200 12/08/2026 14,658,771 0.86
57,881,000 Peruvian Government International Bond PEN 6.350 12/08/2028 19,949,776 1.16
36,781,000 Peruvian Government International Bond PEN 6.850 12/02/2042 12,385,368 0.72
46,993,915 2.74
216,100,000 HSBC Bank Plc. 144A(®) EGP 0.000 07/01/2021 13,602,249 0.79
131,150,000 JPMorgan Chase Bank NA 144A(e) EGP 0.000 08/07/2021 7,750,681 0.45
205,450,000 JPMorgan Chase Bank NA 144A(e) EGP 0.000 02/09/2021 11,917,883 0.70
4,360,000,000 Republic of Colombia-Citigroup, Inc. CoP 11.000 25/07/2024 1,481,419 0.09
21,149,983 1.24
81,003,999 82,591,956 4.82
81,003,999 82,591,956 4.82
1,671,274,961 1,643,438,063 95.83
0.01

usb
150 US Treasury Notes 10YR Futures 22/03/2021 20,716,406 39,844 0.00
670 US Treasury Notes 5YR Futures 31/03/2021 84,414,766 69,193 0.01

152 US Treasury Ultra Long Notes 10YR Futures

22/03/2021 23,864,000 31,249 0.00
128,995,172 140,286 0.01
140,286 0.01

usb
(49) US Treasury Long Bond Futures 22/03/2021 (8,561,219) (247) (0.00)
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(145) US Treasury Notes 2YR Futures 31/03/2021 (32,020,078) (7,715) (0.00)
(7) US Treasury Ultra Long Bond Futures 22/03/2021 (1,509,594) (4,919) (0.00)
(42,090,891) (12,881) (0.00)
(12,881) (0.00)
0.03%
CoP
41,473,500,000 BFS Finance COP Bond Forward 09/12/2020 35,303 35,302 0.00
93,531,500,000 BFS Finance COP Bond Forward 06/01/2021 355,525 355,525 0.02
19,930,600,000 BFS Finance COP Bond Forward 06/01/2021 125,736 125,736 0.01
516,564 516,563 0.03
516,563 0.03
1.23
AUD 72,683,767 usD 53,405,734 01/12/2020 223,982 0.01
EUR 131,226,987 usD 155,517,305 01/12/2020 1,896,020 0.05
NOK 50,731,421 usD 5,598,200 01/12/2020 165,654 0.01
BRL 711,487,689 usD 124,267,971 02/12/2020 9,787,818 0.57
IDR 93,021,732,425 usD 6,326,697 04/12/2020 255,184 0.02
IDR 169,929,699,859 usD 11,827,368 07/12/2020 179,675 0.01
EUR 47,371,000 usD 56,600,481 10/12/2020 234,528 0.01
usb 8,618,874 CLP 6,570,213,537 14/12/2020 33,543 0.00
AUD 24,176,095 EUR 14,656,631 16/12/2020 252,214 0.01
AUD 81,664,525 usD 59,018,011 16/12/2020 1,247,076 0.06
CAD 4,447,449 CHF 3,059,622 16/12/2020 52,354 0.00
CAD 4,572,063 JPY 366,149,066 16/12/2020 22,407 0.00
CAD 129,298,543 usD 98,236,688 16/12/2020 1,745,688 0.08
CHF 22,812,053 usD 25,036,456 16/12/2020 214,337 0.01
CNH 1,861,548,058 usD 274,098,713 16/12/2020 8,873,024 0.54
COoP 10,264,445,512 usD 2,735,796 16/12/2020 127,136 0.01
CZK 75,467,516 EUR 2,791,981 16/12/2020 101,339 0.01
CZK 355,168,933 usD 15,829,092 16/12/2020 416,262 0.03
EUR 2,756,153 CHF 2,960,478 16/12/2020 30,564 0.00
EUR 11,575,116 SGD 18,509,495 16/12/2020 51,373 0.00
EUR 94,138,492 usD 110,869,824 16/12/2020 2,101,517 0.11
GBP 22,572,520 EUR 24,704,256 16/12/2020 545,471 0.02
GBP 40,471,994 usD 52,503,446 16/12/2020 1,629,971 0.13
HUF 10,204,936,367 usD 33,418,645 16/12/2020 660,716 0.03
IDR 90,835,774,253 usD 6,396,983 16/12/2020 12,558 0.00
ILS 84,956,583 usD 24,806,732 16/12/2020 881,204 0.07
JPY 10,063,178,487 usD 95,878,322 16/12/2020 672,942 0.03
MXN 2,218,499,930 usD 103,489,809 16/12/2020 6,842,028 0.42
NOK 283,059,060 EUR 25,983,722 16/12/2020 980,153 0.07
NOK 95,893,580 SEK 91,444,479 16/12/2020 113,000 0.01
NOK 341,739,773 usD 37,845,476 16/12/2020 984,047 0.08
NZD 5,121,910 AUD 4,867,510 16/12/2020 16,708 0.00
NZD 4,903,982 EUR 2,764,364 16/12/2020 137,799 0.01
NZD 69,386,459 usD 46,512,759 16/12/2020 2,374,694 0.13
PLN 38,133,177 EUR 8,517,018 16/12/2020 4,115 0.00
PLN 310,704,741 usD 82,434,009 16/12/2020 878,138 0.05
RON 161,987,000 usD 39,350,662 16/12/2020 512,727 0.03
SEK 267,518,423 EUR 25,827,791 16/12/2020 549,814 0.03
SEK 155,026,078 usD 17,636,522 16/12/2020 643,460 0.04
SGD 73,678,083 usD 54,418,841 16/12/2020 669,666 0.02
THB 3,386,809,008 usD 109,910,922 16/12/2020 2,037,962 0.14
TRY 104,056,160 usD 12,453,749 16/12/2020 792,086 0.05
usb 6,316,002 IDR 89,476,520,266 16/12/2020 2,372 0.00
usb 47,781,033 CLP 36,272,504,324 17/12/2020 380,174 0.03
ZAR 1,224,928,895 usD 75,251,605 17/12/2020 4,405,295 0.28
BRL 681,584,919 usb 127,267,026 05/01/2021 1,111,474 0.07
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1DR 163,531,252,226 USD 11,520,452 06/01/2021 2,424 0.00
USD 19,288,833 IDR 272,801,967,589 06/01/2021 66,434 0.00
KRW 36,736,189,148 usD 32,868,599 08/01/2021 323,778 0.02
TRY 29,380,944 usD 3,491,795 11/01/2021 211,988 0.01
MYR 247,613,000 usD 59,385,313 13/01/2021 1,352,145 0.08
TRY 57,053,583 usD 7,028,152 19/01/2021 142,220 0.01
MYR 203,178,393 usD 48,909,150 26/01/2021 915,162 0.05
USD 25,884,341 INR 1,923,668,713 27/01/2021 28,040 0.00
coP 36,190,380, 250 usD 9,877,284 29/01/2021 197,485 0.01
INR 521,232,435 usD 6,929,716 05/02/2021 69,746 0.00
USD 11,750,260 WD 329,154,936 05/02/2021 107,001 0.01
RUB 527,626,747 usD 6,799,808 08/02/2021 87,188 0.00
USD 1,409,714 RUB 107,845,213 08/02/2021 2,034 0.00
NZD 11,479,392 AUD 10,683,473 09/02/2021 200,796 0.01
USD 65,721,759 PEN 231,944,023 12/07/2021 1,474,935 0.08
USD 12,221,290 TRY 104,918,548 04/08/2021 63,534 0.00
61,095,179 3.56
UsD 53,108,302 AUD 72,683,763 01/12/2020 (521,415) (0.01)
USD 155,868,288 EUR 131,226,998 01/12/2020 (1,545,037) (0.05)
USD 39,434,941 NOK 355,157,069 01/12/2020 (916,250) (0.03)
AUD 64,978,927 usD 48,053,721 02/12/2020 (109,018) (0.01)
USD 47,864,892 AUD 64,978,928 02/12/2020 (79,810) (0.01)
USD 132,931,508 BRL 711,487,689 02/12/2020 (1,124,280) (0.06)
USD 6,575,461 IDR 93,021,732,425 04/12/2020 (6,421) (0.00)
USD 31,093,630 EUR 26,222,342 07/12/2020 (364,938) (0.02)
USD 6,909,447 IDR 98,419,901, 248 07/12/2020 (44,795) (0.00)
USD 44,625,490 EUR 37,425,936 10/12/2020 (277,580) (0.02)
CLP 3,807,941,207 UsD 5,001,415 14/12/2020 (25,560) (0.00)
WD 298,075,466 usD 10,508,978 14/12/2020 (59,088) (0.00)
USD 13,246,222 NOK 118,017,153 14/12/2020 (163,032) (0.01)
USD 8,194,677 EUR 6,871,846 15/12/2020 (51,606) (0.00)
USD 4,601,198 GBP 3,459,548 15/12/2020 (26,028) (0.00)
AUD 4,648,505 CAD 4,468,840 16/12/2020 (25,202) (0.00)
CHF 8,931,462 EUR 8,297,147 16/12/2020 (70,743) (0.00)
EUR 2,863,915 CAD 4,462,854 16/12/2020 (14,125) (0.00)
EUR 2,759,009 CZK 74,691,891 16/12/2020 (105,430) (0.01)
EUR 13,341,667 GBP 12,120,336 16/12/2020 (200,855) (0.00)
EUR 2,759,009 HUF 1,011,452,692 16/12/2020 (66,782) (0.00)
EUR 6,899,455 NOK 76,527,352 16/12/2020 (415,551) (0.03)
EUR 2,780,725 PLN 12,611,144 16/12/2020 (44,521) (0.00)
EUR 35,852,870 SEK 372,458,824 16/12/2020 (893,272) (0.07)
HUF 2,060,832,301 EUR 5,786,651 16/12/2020 (62,154) (0.00)
JPY 712,465,051 AUD 9,391,937 16/12/2020 (95,114) (0.01)
JPY 2,809,341,326 EUR 22,832,017 16/12/2020 (445,417) (0.03)
USD 64,485,241 AUD 89,665,516 16/12/2020 (1,684,255) (0.13)
USD 70,396,718 CAD 92,617,396 16/12/2020 (1,221,317) (0.05)
USD 28,204,116 CHF 25,580,935 16/12/2020 (111,570) (0.00)
usD 166,969,961 CNH 1,125,315,109 16/12/2020 (4,087,870) (0.28)
USD 4,255,042 coP 15,464,099,780 16/12/2020 (58,165) (0.00)
USD 14,617,426 CZK 333,757,879 16/12/2020 (648,591) (0.04)
USD 101,473,234 EUR 86,483,717 16/12/2020 (2,311,958) (0.12)
USD 57,121,953 GBP 43,857,080 16/12/2020 (1,539,194) 0.11)
USD 15,300,037 HUF 4,675,610,944 16/12/2020 (314,155) (0.01)
USD 39,883,783 ILS 136,111,590 16/12/2020 (1,271,657) (0.11)
USD 95,769,495 JPY 10,054,358, 454 16/12/2020 (697,142) (0.02)
USD 27,935,513 MXN 593,758,526 16/12/2020 (1,593,659) (0.09)
USD 42,891,847 NOK 396,902,406 16/12/2020 (2,205,425) (0.15)
USD 18,423,436 NZD 27,732,039 16/12/2020 (1,115,662) (0.07)
USD 51,933,793 PLN 195,048,516 16/12/2020 (366,378) (0.02)
USD 17,743,418 RON 72,435,730 16/12/2020 (82,294) (0.01)
USD 18,364,141 SEK 162,517,127 16/12/2020 (799,151) (0.06)
USD 27,882,892 SGD 37,602,708 16/12/2020 (232,351) (0.00)
USD 90,822,599 THB 2,844,505,117 16/12/2020 (3,200,765) (0.20)
USD 9,049,834 TRY 74,515,432 16/12/2020 (435,612) (0.03)
CLP 8,149,332,674 usD 10,751,951 17/12/2020 (102,415) (0.00)
USD 88,594,018 ZAR 1,470,852,216 17/12/2020 (7,055,232) (0.42)
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USD 23,270,047 KRW 25,799,291, 639 08/01/2021 (40,475) (0.00)
USD 2,777,829 TRY 24,074,056 11/01/2021  (256,964) (0.02)
USD 784,844 TRY 6,323,923 19/01/2021 (9,934) (0.00)
TRY 11,692,615 usD 1,479,797 25/01/2021 (13,634) (0.00)
USD 1,503,541 RUB 115,141,187 25/01/2021 (1,505) (0.00)
USD 3,427,751 TRY 27,687,724 25/01/2021 (44,075) (0.00)
CAD 3,887,766 NZD 4,276,970 27/01/2021 (6,518) (0.00)
INR 2,178,600,042 usD 29,301,285 27/01/2021 (18,416) (0.00)
USD 3,897,227 coP 14,245,006, 480 29/01/2021 (68,335) (0.00)
WD 392,784,513 usD 13,993,983 05/02/2021 (99,943) (0.00)
AUD 16,738,513 NZD 17,780,151 09/02/2021  (169,889) (0.01)
USD 95,754,124 CNH 634,902,508 24/02/2021  (239,032) (0.01)
PEN 24,169,632 usD 6,781,915 12/07/2021 (87,100) (0.00)
TRY 42,314,173 = 4,971,876 04/08/2021 (68,593) (0.00)
(40,013, 255) (2.33)
0.05

EUR
47,641,000 Call EUR / Put USD Expires 03/12/2020  Strike 1.19 201,508 342,830 0.02
47,690,000 Call EUR / Put USD Expires 03/12/2020  Strike 1.19 312,545 418,580 0.02
24,080,000 Call EUR / Put USD Expires 08/12/2020  Strike 1.19 139,265 192,260 0.01
24,132,000 Call EUR / Put USD Expires 11/12/2020  Strike 1.20 79,883 148,761 0.01
733,201 1,102,431 0.06

GBP
10,774,000 Call GBP / Put USD Expires 11/12/2020  Strike 1.35 26,375 73,942 0.01

Usp
14,045,000 Put USD / Call NOK Expires 10/12/2020  Strike 8.92 157,964 241,349 0.01
500,162 1,417,722 0.08

AUD
(36,910,000) Put AUD / Call NZD Expires 05/02/2021  Strike 1.06 (294,357)  (429,808) (0.03)

NZD
(20,494,000) Put NZD / Call CAD Expires 25/01/2021  Strike 0.89 8,905 (49,555) (0.00)

USD
(14,127,000) Call USD / Put RUB Expires 22/01/2021  Strike 82.86 29,540 (60,025) (0.00)
283,476 (539,388) (0.03)
216,706 878,334 0.05

0.41

679,000,000 Floating (BRL 1 month BRCDI) Fixed 4.120 BRL  03/01/2022 1,134,222 0.07
135,760,000 Floating (EUR 6 month LIBOR) Fixed 0.000 EUR  16/12/2022 239,589 0.01
50,485,000 Floating (ILS 3 month TELBOR)  Fixed 1.405 IS 18/12/2029 1,078,410 0.06
9,345,000 Floating (ILS 3 month TELBOR)  Fixed 1.020 ILS  18/03/2030 99,023 0.01
21,130,000 Floating (ILS 3 month TELBOR)  Fixed 0.893 ILS  17/06/2030 143,899 0.01
36,910,000 Floating (ILS 3 month TELBOR)  Fixed 0.855 ILS  16/06/2031 102,963 0.01
35,010,000 Floating (ILS 3 month TELBOR)  Fixed 0.862 ILS  16/06/2031 109,531 0.01
4,321,380,000 Floating (INR 6 month LIBOR) Fixed 3.750 INR 16/09/2022 59,306 0.00
1,916,995,000 Floating (MXN 1 month TIIE) Fixed 4.500 MXN 1471272022 74,205 0.01
1,244,285,000 Floating (MXN 1 month TIIE) Fixed 5.100 MXN  10/12/2025 375,522 0.02
164,480,000 Floating (MXN 1 month TIIE) Fixed 5.400 MXN  08/12/2027 73,516 0.00
73,990,000 Floating (MYR 3 month KLIBOR)  Fixed 2.250 MYR  17/06/2022 46,264 0.00
78,930,000 Floating (MYR 3 month KLIBOR)  Fixed 2.250 MYR  17/06/2022 49,411 0.00
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72,640,000 Floating (MYR 3 month LIBOR) Fixed 2.250 MYR  17/06/2022 58,695 0.00
126,910,000 Floating (MYR 3 month KLIBOR) Fixed 3.650 MYR  27/02/2024 1,545,206 0.09
191,640,000 Floating (MYR 3 month KLIBOR) Fixed 3.693 MYR  01/03/2024 2,396,765 0.14
202,350,000 Floating (MYR 3 month KLIBOR) Fixed 3.605 MYR  06/03/2024 2,413,945 0.14
31,000,000 Floating (MYR 3 month KLIBOR) Fixed 3.330 MYR  31/05/2024 318,129 0.02
11,670,000 Floating (MYR 3 month KLIBOR) Fixed 3.250 MYR  18/12/2024 120,797 0.01
26,240,000 Floating (MYR 3 month KLIBOR) Fixed 3.250 MYR  18/12/2024 272,081 0.02
40,600,000 Floating (MYR 3 month KLIBOR) Fixed 3.000 MYR  18/03/2025 318,988 0.02
19,680,000 Floating (MYR 3 month LIBOR) Fixed 2.250 MYR  17/06/2025 9,672 0.00
204,980,000 Floating (PLN 6 month WIBOR) Fixed 0.345 PLN  16/06/2023 12,624 0.00
120,460,000 Floating (PLN 6 month WIBOR) Fixed 0.750 PLN  16/12/2025 204,074 0.01
5,040,000 Fixed 1.000 Floating (USD 3 month LIBOR) USD  16/12/2030 63,687 0.00
11,320,524 0.66
10,310,000 Floating (Colombia Government Fixed 1.000 USD  20/06/2024 119,856 0.01
International Bond)
1,660,000 Floating (Qatar Government Fixed 1.000 USD  20/06/2024 19,508 0.00
International Bond)
2,970,000 Floating (Colombia Government Fixed 1.000 USD  20/12/2024 14,319 0.00
International Bond)
5,080,000 Floating (Peruvian Government Fixed 1.000 USD  20/12/2024 26,207 0.00
International Bond)
9,220,000 Floating (Philippine Government Fixed 1.000 USD  20/12/2024 60,352 0.00
International Bond)
11,510,000 Floating (Qatar Government Fixed 1.000 USD  20/12/2024 74,487 0.01
International Bond)
2,510,000 Floating (Russian Foreign Bond Fixed 1.000 USD  20/12/2024 26,470 0.00
- Eurobond)
4,680,000 Floating (Saudi Government Fixed 1.000 USD  20/12/2024 37,626 0.00
International Bond)
2,910,000 Floating (Russian Foreign Bond Fixed 1.000 USD  20/06/2025 49,320 0.00
- Eurobond)
3,920,000 Floating (Russian Foreign Bond Fixed 1.000 Usb  20/12/2025 92,198 0.01
- Eurobond)
520,343 0.03
11,840,867 0.69
289,800,000 Floating (BRL 1 month BRCDI) Fixed 4.230 BRL  02/01/2023 (412,055) (0.02)
519,795,000 Floating (BRL 1 month BRCDI) Fixed 4.930 BRL  02/01/2024 (1,487,296) (0.09)
31,682,600,000 Floating (CLP 6 month LIBOR) Fixed 1.500 CLP  16/12/2025 (453,329) (0.03)
344,030,000 Fixed 2.500 Floating (CNY 3 month LIBOR) CNY  17/03/2023 (58,182) (0.00)
182,511,310,000 Floating (COP 3 month LIBOR) Fixed 2.100 COP  16/12/2022 (49,905) (0.00)
93,126,450,000 Fixed 3.400 Floating (COP 3 month LIBOR) CoOP  16/12/2025 (291,730) (0.02)
249,480,000 Floating (CZK 6 month PRIBOR) Fixed 0.620 CZK  16/06/2023 (36,107) (0.00)
52,840,000 Fixed 0.000 Floating (EUR 6 month LIBOR) EUR  16/12/2025 (244,462) (0.02)
1,030,000 Fixed 0.000 Floating (EUR 6 month LIBOR) EUR  16/12/2027 (5,386) (0.00)
8,310,000 Fixed 0.000 Floating (EUR 6 month LIBOR) EUR  16/12/2030 (72,411) (0.00)
599,410,000 Fixed 0.250 Floating (PLN 3 month WIBOR) PLN  16/12/2021 (70,917) (0.00)
220,000 Fixed 1.250 Floating (THB 6 month LIBOR) THB  17/06/2025 32) (0.00)
1,460,300,000 Floating (THB 6 month LIBOR) Fixed 0.750 THB  16/12/2025 (80,421) (0.01)
532,910,000 Floating (THB 6 month LIBOR) Fixed 0.750 THB  17/03/2026 (64,574) (0.00)
797,860,000 Floating (ZAR 3 month JIBAR) Fixed 4.000 ZAR  16/06/2023 (360,385) (0.02)
586,490,000 Floating (ZAR 3 month JIBAR) Fixed 5.250 ZAR  17/03/2026 (458,085) (0.03)
(4,145,277) (0.24)
10,520,000 Fixed 1.000 Floating (China Government USD  20/12/2020 (5,963) (0.00)
International Bond)
6,470,000 Fixed 1.000 Floating (China Government USD  20/12/2020 (3,967) (0.00)
International Bond)
5,180,000 Fixed 1.000 Floating (China Government USD  20/12/2020 (3,290) (0.00)
International Bond)
14,910,000 Fixed 1.000 Floating (China Government USD  20/12/2020 (9,721) (0.00)
International Bond)
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18,180,000 Fixed 1.000 Floating (China Government USD  20/12/2020 (11,941) (0.00)
International Bond)
13,210,000 Fixed 1.000 Floating (China Government USD  20/12/2020 (8,421) (0.00)
International Bond)
4,500,000 Fixed 1.000 Floating (China Government USD  20/12/2020 (2,936) (0.00)
International Bond)
7,250,000 Fixed 1.000 Floating (China Government USD  20/12/2020 (4,661) (0.00)
International Bond)
460,000 Fixed 1.000 Floating (China Government USD  20/12/2020 (281) (0.00)
International Bond)
2,720,000 Fixed 1.000 Floating (China Government USD  20/12/2020 (1,615) (0.00)
International Bond)
3,420,000 Fixed 1.000 Floating (China Government USD  20/12/2020 (1,981) (0.00)
International Bond)
2,170,000 Fixed 1.000 Floating (People®s Republic of UsSD  20/12/2020 (1,273) (0.00)
China)
1,720,000 Fixed 1.000 Floating (People®s Republic of Usb  20/12/2020 (988) (0.00)
China)
770,000 Fixed 1.000 Floating (China Government USD  20/06/2021 (4,819) (0.00)
International Bond)
6,030,000 Fixed 1.000 Floating (China Government USD  20/06/2021 (37,684) (0.01)
International Bond)
630,000 Fixed 1.000 Floating (China Government USD  20/06/2021 (3,974) (0.00)
International Bond)
1,680,000 Fixed 1.000 Floating (China Government USD  20/06/2021 (10,555) (0.00)
International Bond)
4,530,000 Fixed 1.000 Floating (China Government USD  20/06/2021 (29,263) (0.00)
International Bond)
370,000 Fixed 1.000 Floating (China Government UsD  20/06/2021 (2,420) (0.00)
International Bond)
1,630,000 Fixed 1.000 Floating (China Government USD  20/06/2021 (10,655) (0.00)
International Bond)
5,620,000 Fixed 1.000 Floating (China Government USD  20/06/2021 (36,179) (0.01)
International Bond)
2,360,000 Fixed 1.000 Floating (China Government USD  20/06/2021 (14,829) (0.00)
International Bond)
10,310,000 Fixed 1.000 Floating (China Government USD  20/06/2021 (65,179) (0.01)
International Bond)
4,140,000 Fixed 1.000 Floating (China Government USD  20/06/2021 (26,392) (0.00)
International Bond)
4,450,000 Fixed 1.000 Floating (China Government USD  20/06/2021 (28,083) (0.00)
International Bond)
3,560,000 Fixed 1.000 Floating (China Government USD  20/06/2021 (20,729) (0.00)
International Bond)
1,550,000 Fixed 1.000 Floating (China Government USD  20/06/2021 (9,025) (0.00)
International Bond)
2,730,000 Fixed 1.000 Floating (China Government USD  20/06/2021 (15,473) (0.00)
International Bond)
5,220,000 Fixed 1.000 Floating (China Government USD  20/06/2021 (29,519) (0.00)
International Bond)
2,250,000 Fixed 1.000 Floating (China Government USD  20/06/2021 (12,224) (0.00)
International Bond)
1,580,000 Fixed 1.000 Floating (China Government USD  20/06/2021 (8,687) (0.00)
International Bond)
2,840,000 Fixed 1.000 Floating (China Government USD  20/06/2021 (15,615) (0.00)
International Bond)
4,070,000 Fixed 1.000 Floating (China Government USD  20/06/2021 (21,368) (0.00)
International Bond)
5,430,000 Fixed 1.000 Floating (China Government USD  20/06/2021 (26,727) (0.00)
International Bond)
5,350,000 Fixed 1.000 Floating (China Government USD  20/06/2021 (27,879) (0.00)
International Bond)
7,410,000 Fixed 1.000 Floating (China Government USD  20/06/2022 (81,870) (0.01)

International Bond)
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2,210,000 Fixed 1.000 Floating (China Government USD  20/06/2022 (21,570) (0.00)
International Bond)
590,000 Floating (Ukraine Government Fixed 5.000 USD  20/12/2024 (32,334) (0.00)
International Bond)
(650,090) (0.04)
(4,795,367) (0.28)
1,671,491,667 1,673,087,789 97.56
41,914,198 2.44
1,715,001,987 100.00
1,671,274,961 1,643,438,063 95.83
140,286 0.01
(12,881) (0.00)
516,563 0.03
61,095,179 3.56
(40,013,255) (2.33)
500,182 1,417,722 0.08
283,476 (539,388) (0.03)
11,840,867 0.69
(4,795,367) (0.28)
41,914,198 2.44
1,715,001,987 100.00
N.A. BNP S.A. N.A.
HSBC JP N.A.
UBS
BNP S.A. N.A. JP N.A.
UBS
N.A. BNP S.A. N.A.
HSBC Jp N.A.
2020 11 30 0.57
(2)
()
©
(d) 2020 11 30
(e) 144A 1933 144A
®
© 2020 11 30 0.120
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2021
80,529,679.83 8,915,441
406,892.16 45,047
80,122,787.67 8,870,394

13,445,611

3.64 403
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€Y
1,000 1,000
1,000 1,000 2021
2,500 27.68 260 25,000,002
2018 20
2018 12 19 2,500
2019 2,500
2020 2,500
2021 2,500
(¢
2018 20

2011 61
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5 863,482,557
3 957,541,941
7 1,061,416,340
1 792,326,500
2 15,702,859,938
3 19,580,499,367
2 1,199,485,836

12 88,945,241,300

7 7,319,535,926
1 32,552,266
2 3,218,355,119
1 1,962,358,623

69 58,405,111,197

19 3,772,558,574
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131

23 103

PricewaterhouseCoopers, Ireland

2021 31
110.71
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2020 12 31

2020 12 31 2019 12 31
780,077 86,362,325 655,099 72,526,010
305 33,767 841 93,107
(774,780)  (85,775,894) (652,312)  (72,217,462)
5,602 620,197 3,628 401,656
(776) (85,911) (476) (52,698)

4,826 534,286 3,152 348,958
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2020 12 31

2020 12 31 2019 12 31
118,155 13,080,940 45,632 5,051,919

172,899 19,141,648 135,452 14,995,891

291,054 32,222,588 181,084 20,047,810

10 (258,076)  (28,571,594) (152,932)  (16,931,102)
32,978 3,650,994 28,152 3,116,708

11 25,000 2,767,750 25,000 2,767,750
7,978 883,244 3,152 348,958

32,978 3,650,994 28,152 3,116,708

2021 24
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2020 12 31
2018 12 31 25,000 2,767,750 25,000 2,767,750
3,152 348,958 3,152 348,958
2019 12 31 25,000 2,767,750 3,152 348,958 28,152 3,116,708
4,826 534,286 4,826 534,286
2020 12 31 25,000 2,767,750 7,978 883,244 32,978 3,650,994
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
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2020 12 31
47-49
10282 200
www . goldmansachs.com/shareholders
101 101 2014
101 |
45(b) 46 52
13 91 99
15 110 113(a) 114 115 118
119(a) ©) 120 127 129
9@ )
38
10(F) 16 40
30 31
24 17
24

15

214/290



(

(

)

)

b)

a)

EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

215/290



(

(

(

~

)

)

)

o

50

EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2020 12 31 2019 12 31

305 841

305 841
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2020 12 31 2019 12 31
1,203 939
1,203 939
2019
2019
2019 28,200
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
637,223 521,747
31,333 28,973
85,581 83,967
15,338 13,976
3,576 1,680
1,729 1,969
774,780 652,312
2019 20,000

20 2019
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2020 12 31 2019 12 31
716 485
96
812 485
(21) ©)
(15)
(36) ©)
776 476
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
5,602 3,628
700 453
;
81
G) 16
776 476

12.5
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2020 12 31 2019 12 31
48 9
48 9
2019 12 31 9
36 9
3
2020 12 31 48 9
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
172,588 129,381
93 5,989
170 73
48 9
172,899 135,452
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
224,127 113,222
31,077 39,244
2,872
466
258,076 152,932
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2020 12 31 2019 12 31
25,000,000 25,000 25,000,000 25,000
2 2
25,000,000
2019 12 31
CovID-19 CovVID-
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15

290.8 2019 12 31 181.0 257.7
2019 12 31 152.3

16
2021 24
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GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT FUND SERVICES LIMITED

PROFIT ANIY LOSS ACCOLNT

or the vear end [ B] i (20

Mol Year ended Year ended

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

LISS"000 LI5S {Hp0)

Tumover TRO,077 653,089

Imterest receivable and similar income 4 305 241

Administrative expenses & {774, 7805 (652.312)
OPERATING PROFIT AND PROFIT BEFORE

TAXATION 5,602 3628

Tax on profit 7 (7763 (476)

PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 4,826 3,152

The operating profits of the company are derived from continuing operations.

The company has no recogmsed gams and losses other than those included i the profit and loss account for the year
shown above and therefore no separate statement of comprehensive income has been presented

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financal statements.
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GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT FUND SERVICES LIMITED

EALANCE SHEET
asat3] December 2020
MNote 31 December 20240 31 Decembes- 2010
LUsi000 UEET e
CURERENT ASEETS
Cash at bank and in hand 118,155 45,632
Delstoys 2 172200 135452
221,054 181,024
CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE
WITHIN ONE YEAR 10 (258,076) (1539320
MET CURRENT ASSETS AND NET ASSETS 32978 28,152
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Called upshare capital 11 25,000 25,000
Profitand lose account 1978 3152
TOTAL SHAREHOLDER'S FUNDS 32978 28,152

The fiarcial statements sere approved by the Board of Dimectors on 24 March 2021 and signed on it behalf bar

|

N 1 _
é.a.r-‘lfj, ...... - Alemen
Barbara Healy Jacqueline O Connor

Director Director

The arcompanying nokes are anintepm] part of these financial statements
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GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT FUND SERVICES LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES TN FOUITY

for the vear ended 31 Decem ber 2020

Called up share Frofit and loss  Total sharcholders®

capital account furds

LSS0 USS"000 USS"000

Balamce at 31 December 2008 I5,000 . 15,000
Profit for the Dnancial vear - 3,152 3,152
Balance at 31 December 2019 25,000 3152 IR,152
Profit for the financial period - 4,826 4,826
Balunce at 31 December 2020 5,000 7978 32978

Mo dividends were paid for the vears ended 31 December 2020 or 31 December 2019,

The accompanying notes are an inegral part of these financial statements

225/290



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT FUND SERVICES LIMITED

1.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2020

GENERAL INFORMATION

The company 15 a private himited company and 15 incorporated and domciled in Ireland. The wddress of ats
registered office 1s 47-49 5t Stephen’s Green, Dublin 2, Ireland

The mmediate parem undertaking 15 Goldman Sschs Assel Management Imternational Holdings LL.C, a
company incorporated and domiciled in the United States of America.

The ultimate parent undertaking and the parent company of the smallest and largest group for which consolidated
financial statements are prepared 18 The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., a company incorporated in the United States
of America. Copics of 13 consolidated financial statements can be obtained from Investor Relations, 200 West
Street, Mew York, MY 10282, United States of America, or at www goldmansachs com/shareholders.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a.  Basis of preparation

The company prepares financial statements under Inish Generally Accepted Accounting Practices (Insh
GAAP).

The financial staternents have been prepared on the going concern basis s the Directors are of the view that
the Company ¢an continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, The financial stalements have

been prepared under the historical eost convention and in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101
Reduced Disclosure Framework (FRS 101} and Irish law, including the Companies Act 2014,

The falkowing exemplions from the disclosure requirements of International Financial Beportmg Standards
(IFR.S) as adopted by the EL have been applied in the preparstion of these financial statements in accordance
with FES 101

(1 IFRS 2 *Share-based Payment” paragraph 45(b) and 46 1o 52, These disclosures are provided in the
consolidated {inancial statements of Group Inc.,

(ii) IFRS 7 Financial [nstrumenis: Disclosures”;
(i) [FRS 13 ‘Fair Value Measurement” paragraphs 91-99,

(w)  IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers” sécond sentence of paragraph 110 and paragraphs
113(a), 114, 115, 118, 119a) to (<), 120 t0 127 and 129;

(v} IAS | “Presentation of Financial Statements’ paragraph 38 to present comparative information in
respect of [AS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements” paragraph 75(a)(iv];

(vi) [IAS 1 *Presentation of Financial Statements” paragraphe 10({), 16, and 40A.I,

(vit} LAS 7" Swatement of Cash Flows",

(vin) LAS 3 " Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors” paragraphs 30 and 31;
i) IAS 24 "Related Party Disclosures’ paragraph 17 and

{x}  LAS 24 “Related Party Disclosures” requirements to disclose transactions with compantes also wholly
owned within GS Group.

-13-
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GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT FUND SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2020

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

b.  Revenue recognition

The company accounts for revenues earned from contracts with clients for investment management services
under IFRS 15, As such, revenues from these services are recogrised when performance oblizations related
to the underlying transactions are completed.

If the company i principal to the transaction, the company recognises revenue on contracts with clients,
gross of expenses incurred to satisfy some or all of ns performance ohligations. The company is principal to
the transaction if it has the primary obligation to provide the service to the client. The company satisfies the
performance obligation by itself, or by engaging other GS Group entities to satisfy some or all of its
performance obligations on s behalll Such revenue is recognised in rnover and expenses incurred ane
recognised in administrative expenses,

Turmever represents marsgement company fees and revemues associnted with armangements where the
company is principal to providing services but uliimately sub-delegates provision of these services, such as
portfolio management. It is recogmsed on an accrneals basis over the period then the related service 15
provided.

c.  Dividends

Final equity dividends are recognised as a liability and deducied from equity in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the company”s shareholder. Interim equity dividends are recognised and deducted
from equity when paid.

d.  Foreign currencies

The company’s financeal statements are presented in U5, dollars, which is also the company’s functional
CUITETCY.

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated into U5 dollars at rates of exchange ruling
on the date the transaction cccurred. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
tramalated into U5, dollars at rates of exchange ruling &t the balance sheet date. Foreign exchange gains and
losses are recognised in the profit and loss account,

e, Cash at bank and in hand

This includes cash at bank and in hand and haghly liquid deposits held in the ordinary course of business.
. Financial assets and financial linbilities

{iy Recognition and derccognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the company becomes party 1o the
comraciual provisions of the instrument,

A financial asset s derecognised when the contractual rights 1o the cash fows from the fnancial asset
expire o if the company transfers the financial asset and either a) substantially all the risk and rewards
of ownership, or b) neither transfers nor retains substantially all the nsk and rewards of ownershap and
the company does not retain control of that financial asset A financial lisbiliny is derecognised only
when it 15 extinguished (1.¢. when the eblization specified in the contract 15 discharped, is cancelled or
EXpires).
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GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT FUND SERVICES LIMITED

2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
I.  Financial assets and linancial liabilities (continued)
(ii} Classilication and measurement

The company classifies its financial assels as fnancial assets measured at amortised cost on the basis
of both the company’s business model for managing financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the firancial assets. The business model reflects how the company manages particular
groups of assets in order to generate future cash flows. Where the business model is to hold the assetz
to collect contractual cash flows, the company subsequently assesses whether the cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest,

Financial assets that are held for the collection of contractual cash flows and have cash flows that
represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost, unless they are
designated at fair value through profit or loss. The company considers whether the cash flows represent
basic lending arrangements and where contractual terms introduce exposure to risk or volatility
inconsistent with a basic lending amrangement the financial asset is classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss,

Financial assets at amortised cost are initially messured at Fair value plus transaction costs and
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The effective interest methad 15 a
method of caleulating the amotised cost of o financial insrument and allocating the mnlerest ineome
over the relevant peried. The effective interest rate is the rate thal exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipls throush the expected life of the nancial asset of, when appropriate, a shomer period to
the net carrving amount of the financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the company
estimates cash Mows considening all contractual terms of the financial asset but does not consider future
credit bosses. All finance income is recognised inthe profit and koss account.

The company classifies its financial habalities as financial Labilites measured at amortised cost. The
classification, which 1= determined at mitial recognition, depends on the purpose for which they were
acquired or onginated.

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost are initially recognised a1 fair value plus transaction

costs and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective inferest method (see above).
Finance costs, including discounts allowed on issue, are recorded n the profit and loss account.

(i) (fTsetting financial assets and Mnancial Babilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities ane offsct and the net amount presented in the balance sheet
where there 1s:

] Currently a legally enforceable nght to set off the recognised amounts; and
(i) Intent to setile on a net basis or to realise the asset and seftle the liability simultanecusly.

Where these conditions are not mel, financial assets and firancial liabilities are presenied on a gross
basis an the balance sheet

g Current and deferred tax

The tax expense for the vear comprises current and deferred tax. Tax 15 recogrused n the profit and loss
BeCouL

Current tax 15 caleulated on the basis of the tax laws enacied or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the company operates and penerates taxable mcome.
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GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT FUND SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2020

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

g.  Current and deferred tax (continued)

Deferred tax 1s recopmised in respect of all temporary differences that have enpinated, but not reversed at
the balance sheet date, where transactions or events have ocourred by thiat date that will result in an obligation
to pay mare tax or 2 rght to pay less tax in the further with the following exceptions:

(1} Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that the directors consider that it is more likely than
not that there will be suitable taxable profits from which the future reversal of the underlying temporary
differences can be deducted,

(1)  Deferred tax 15 measured on an undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply m the periods
in which temporary differences reverse, based on tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted at
the balance sheet date.

3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES ANDUUDGEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements requires management (o make judzements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the amounts recognised in these financial statements. The nature of estimation means that actual
outcomes could differ from those estimates.  In the opmion of management, there were no estimates or
Judgements made that had a significant effect on amounts recognised in the financial statements.

4. INTEREST RECEIVABLE AND SIMILAR INCOME

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2020 31 December 20019
LSS0 LISS"000
Interest on overnight deposits 305 841
305 841
5 DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS
The table below presents the company’s director’s emoluments:

Yenr ended Year ended
31 December 2020 31 December 2019
LISS"000 LISS"000

Aggregate emoluments:
Far |:|mlll’:;'m;|':-| SCTVECES 1,203 Q39
1203 939

The amournts included above relate to emoluments paid to four {2019 four) non-executive directors and to bwo
(201%9: two) executive directors. Company contnibutions made for two (2019: pwao) directors inrespect of defined
contribution schemes were US329, 768 (2019; UUS528, 2040,

- 16
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GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT FUND SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2020

. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2020 31 December 2019
LUSS"000 LUSS"000

Fees charged by group undertakings for sub-delegated
functions 637225 521,747
Fees charged by external parties for sub-delegated functions 31,333 28,973
Transaction based expenses 85,581 53,967
Management fees charged by group undertakings (note a) 15,338 13,975
Direct ¢osts of employment 3,576 1,680
Other expenses 1,729 1,969
774,780 652,312

a.  Management fees charged by group undenakings relate to operational and admimstrative support, and
management services received from group undertakings.

Auditors” remuneration for the current pericd of €30,000 (including expenses and excluding VAT) is
ngluded in other expenses and relates to the audit of the entity financial statements (2019 €20,000), The
statutory auditors also received €6,750 for tax advisory services duning the period (2019: €14,000), There
were ne other services provided,
The average monthly number of employvees, including executive Directors, during the year was 20 (2019
B

7. TAX ON PROFIT

a.  Amalysis of charge for the period:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2020 31 December 2019
LTSS™00 LSS 0040
Current Tax
Irish corporation tax a1 12.5% Tl& %5
Adjustments in respect of prior periods Oy
Tax charge on profit on erdinary activities (Sec note 6{b)) K12 d55
Deferred tax
Cther uming differences (21 e
Adjustrments in respect of prior periods (15} =
Total deferred tax (sce note ¥) {36) (L]
Total tax on profit on erdinary activities TT6 476
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GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT FUND SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2020

7. TAX ON PROFIT (CONTINUEL)
bh.  Factors alTecting the tax charge for the current period:

Year ended Year ended

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

USS D0 LSS 000

Profit on ordinary activities before tax 602 3628

Profit on ordinary activities at standard Insh

corporation tax rate (12.5%) T 453

Permanent differences - 7
Adjustments in respect of prior periods 8l

Exchange differences (5} 16

Current tax charge for the period TTH 476

¢. Factors that may affect future tax charges:
The standard rate of [rish corporation tax 15 12.5% of profit before tax

8 DEFERRED TAX: ORIGINATION & REVERSAL OF TIMING DIFFERENCES

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2020 31 December 2019
LSS D00 LTSS 000
Deferred tax balance com prises:;
Other uming differences 45
48
The movements in the deferred tax balance were as follows:
As at 31 December 2019 @
Trarster to/from the profit and loss account for the period 36 9
Exchange differences 3
As at 31 Decembser 2020 48 b

9, DEBTORS
Diebtors, all of which are due within one year of the balance sheet date, comprise:

3 December 2020 31 December 2019

USS"00M) LSS 000
Amounts due from customers 172,588 129, 381
Amounts due from group undertakings 23 3989
Crher debtors 170 73
Dreferred tax 48 %
172,899 135,452
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GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT FUND SERVICES LIMITED

1.

11.

12,

13.

14.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2020

CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
7SS0 LSS 000
Amounts due o group undertakings 224,127 113222
Accruals 31,077 30,244
Intercompany borrowings 2872 -
Corporation tax pavable - 466
2ER076 152,932
SHARE CAPITAL
31 December 2020 31 December 019

No. USS"000 No. USS'000

Allotted, called up and fully

paid

Crdinary shares of UIS31 each 25,000,000 25000 25,000,000 15,000
Crrdinary shares of €1 each 2 - 2 -

COn 19 December 2018, the company issued 25,000,000 ordinary shares of USS1 at par to Goldman Sachs Asset
Management International Holdings L.L.C., the immediate parent undertaking.

FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The company had ne Onancial commitments of contingencies outstanding s period end (31 Degember 2019:
LI5S nil).

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

There were no subsequent events affecting the company up to the date of approval of the financial statements
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The company monitors its capital on an ongoing basis. The company s objective is to be prudently capitalised in
terms of the amount and composition of its equity base compared to the company’s nsk exposures. The
appropriate level and composition of it equity capital is determined by multiple factors including the company s
current and future regulatory capital requirements, the results of the company s capital planning and other factors
such as the business environment in the financial markets,

During 2020, the company was in comphance with the capital requirements set by the Central Bank of Ireland.

The directors consider that the most important components of the company s financial risk are market risk, credit
risk and liguidity risk. The company, as part of a global group, adheres to global nsk management policies and
procedures.

a. Moarket Risk

Market risk is the risk of loss in the value of the company”s financial asseis and Ninancial liabiliies due to changes
i market conditions. Risks are monatored and controlled through strong Grmwide oversight and independent
control and suppon functions across the company s business. Relevani market risks for the company are interest
rate nisk and currency nsk.

Interest rate nisk results from exposures to changes in level, slope and curvature of vield curves, volatilities of
interest rates and eredit spreads.
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GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT FUND SERVICES LIMITED

14.

15.

16.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2020

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

a.  Market Risk {continued)
Currency risk resulis from changes in spot prices, forward prices and volaulities in currency rates.

The company manages its interest rate and currency nsk as part of G35 Group’s risk management policy, by
establishing economic hedges as appropriate to the circumstances of the company.

Dhuring the yvear, an outbreak of a novel strain of coronavins (COVID-19) emerged globally. Global financial
markets have experienced and may continue to experience sigmificant volatility resulting from the spread of

COVID-19% The extent of the impact of COVID-19 on the company’s performance will depend on future
developments, including the duration and continued spread of the outbreak.

b, Credit risk
Credit rsk represents the potential for loss due to the default or deterioration mn the credit quality of a
counterparty. Credit nisk is manaped by reviewing the credit quality of counterparties and reviewing, if applicable,
the underlying collateral against whech the assets are secured. The company s credit exposures are;

Cash at bank and in hand - Cash at bank and in hand include both interest-Bearing and non-imterest-bearing
depasits. To mitgate the risk of less, the company places substantially all of its depesits with highly-rated banks,

Debtors — The company is exposed (o eredit nisk from its amounts due from ewstomers and amounts due from
group undertakings. Fees from investment funds are settled from the AUN of the fund, for which the credit nisk
15 considerad minimal.

¢, Liquidity risk
Ligusdity nisk is the risk that the company does not have sufficient cash or collateral to make payments to s
counterparties as they fall due. The company manages its liquidity risk in accordance with G5 Group's

comprehensive and conservative set of liquidity and funding policies to address both company specific and
broader industry or market liquidity events.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

a.  Financial assets and financial liabilitics by category
All financial assets are categonised as Gnancial assets measured ot amortised cost in the current and prios periods.
All fimancial habilities are categonsed as fnancial liabilites measured a1 amortised cost in the current and prior
periods.

b.  Fair value of flinancial assets and financial labilities not measured at fair value
The company has US$290.8 million (31 December 20019: US5181_0 million) of current financial assets and
1783257, 7 million (31 December 2019 U55152.3 million) of current financial habihities, all of which are not
measured at fair value, Given the short-term nature of these instruments, the carrving amounts of the financial
assets and financial liabilities on the balance sheet are a reasonable apprecamation of fair value.

c.  Maturity of financial liabilities
All firancial lishilities are due within ane month of the balance sheet date,
AFPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The linancial staten énts were approved by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2021,
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Goldman Sachs Asset Management International
2020 12 1,755,714 9,438
(¢
2021 9,000
1996
23 2002 18
29
2007 30
2008 28
€
State Street Custodial Services (lreland) Limited
2021 200,000 3,045
2021 31
152.23
1991 22
4

RBC Investor Services lreland Limited

2021 1,200 15 5,760

1997 31
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Goldman Sachs Global Funds
Goldman Sachs Emerging Markets Debt Local Feeder
Independent auditors” report to the unitholders of Goldman Sachs Global Funds

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion, Goldman Sachs Global Funds® financial statements:

e give atrue and fair view of the Trust"s assets, liabilities and financial position as at 30 November
2020 and of its results for the year then ended;

e have been properly prepared in accordance with General ly Accepted Accounting Practice in Ireland
(accounting standards issued by the Financial Reporting Council of the UK, including Financial
Reporting Standard 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland”
and Irish law); and

e have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the European Communities
(Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2011 (as amended).

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements,
which comprise:

e the Statement of Financial Position as at 30 November 2020;
e the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year then ended;

e the Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units for
the year then ended;

e the Schedule of Investments as at 30 November 2020; and

e the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the significant accounting
policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (Ireland) ("1SAs (Ireland)™) and
applicable law.

Our responsibilities under ISAs (Ireland) are further described in the Auditors” responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the Trust in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements in Ireland, which includes 1AASA"s Ethical Standard, and we have ful filled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Trust"s ability to continue as a
going concern for a period of at least twelve months from the date on which the financial statements are authorised
for issue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Manager"s use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this conclusion is not a guarantee as to the
Trust®s ability to continue as a going concern.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Manager with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report
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Goldman Sachs Global Funds
Goldman Sachs Emerging Markets Debt Local Feeder
Independent auditors” report to the unitholders of Goldman Sachs Global Funds
(continued)

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements other
than the financial statements and our auditors® report thereon. The Manager is responsible for the other
information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do
not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of
assurance thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If
we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to
conclude whether there is amaterial misstatement of the financial statements or a material misstatement of the
other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based on these
responsibilities.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit
Responsibilities of the Manager for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Manager"s Responsibilities set out on pages 4 and 5, the Manager is
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework giving a
true and fair view.

The Manager is also responsible for such internal control as the Manager determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Manager is responsible for assessing the Trust®s ability to continue as
agoing concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Manager intends to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors " responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as awhole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors” report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with 1SAs (Ireland) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Our audit testing might include testing complete populations of certain transactions and balances, possibly using
data auditing techniques. However, it typically involves selecting a limited number of items for testing, rather
than testing complete populations. We will often seek to target particular items for testing based on their size or
risk characteristics. Inother cases, we will use audit sampling to enable us to draw a conclusion about the
population fromwhich the sample is selected.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the 1AASA
website at::

https://www. 1aasa. ie/getmedia/b2389013-1cf6-458b-9b8f-
a98202dc9c3a/Description of auditors responsibilities for audit.pdf.

This description forms part of our auditors” report.
Use of this report

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the unitholders as a body in accordance with
the European Communities (Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2011
(as amended) and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any
other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where
expressly agreed by our prior consent inwriting.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
Dublin

24 March 2021
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Independent auditors" report to the members of Goldman Sachs Asset Management
Fund Services Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion, Goldman Sachs Asset Management Fund Services Limited"s financial statements:

e give atrue and fair view of the company®s assets, liabilities and financial position as at 31
December 2020 and of its profit for the year then ended;

e have been properly prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in Ireland
(accounting standards issued by the Financial Reporting Council of the UK, including Financial
Reporting Standard 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework” and Irish law); and

e have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2014.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Report of Directors and Audited Financial
Statements, which comprise:

e the Balance sheet as at 31 December 2020;
e the Profit and loss account for the year then ended;
e the Statement of changes in equity for the year then ended; and

e the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the significant accounting
policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (Ireland) (“ISAs (Ireland)”)
and applicable law.

Our responsibilities under ISAs (Ireland) are further described in the Auditors® responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements in Ireland, which includes 1AASA"s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the company®s ability to
continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from the date on which the financial
statements are authorised for issue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors” use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this conclusion is not a guarantee as
to the company”s ability to continue as a going concern.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described
in the relevant sections of this report.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Report of Directors and Audited Financial
Statements other than the financial statements and our auditors® report thereon. The directors are
responsible for the other information.
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an
audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. Ifwe identify an apparent
material inconsistency or material misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there
is amaterial misstatement of the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Directors® Report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the Companies Act
2014 have been included.

Based on the responsibilities described above and our work undertaken in the course of the audit, 1SAs (Ireland) and
the Companies Act 2014 require us to also report certain opinions and matters as described below:

e Inouropinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the
Directors” Report for the year ended 31 December 2020 is consistent with the financial statements and has
been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

e Based on our knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we have not identified any material misstatements in the Directors® Report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit
Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of directors” responsibilities set out on page 4 and 5, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for
being satisfied that they give a true and fair view.

The directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company”s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors” responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as awhole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors® report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
1SAs (Ireland) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individual ly or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Our audit testing might include testing complete populations of certain transactions and balances, possibly using
data auditing techniques. However, it typically involves selecting a limited number of items for testing, rather
than testing complete populations. We will often seek to target particular items for testing based on their size or
risk characteristics. In other cases, we will use audit sampling to enable us to draw a conclusion about the
population fromwhich the sample is selected.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the 1AASA
website at:

https://www. iaasa. ie/getmedia/b2389013-1cf6-458b-9b8f-
a98202dc9c3a/Description of auditors responsibilities for audit.pdf

This description forms part of our auditors® report.
Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company®s members as a body in
accordance with section 391 of the Companies Act 2014 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions,
accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into
whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent inwriting.
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Other required reporting

Companies Act 2014 opinions on other matters

e \le have obtained all the information and explanations which we consider necessary for the purposes of
our audit.

e Inour opinion the accounting records of the company were sufficient to permit the financial
statements to be readily and properly audited.

e The financial statements are in agreement with the accounting records.

Other exception reporting
Directors” remuneration and transactions

Under the Companies Act 2014 we are required to report to you if, inour opinion, the disclosures of directors”
remuneration and transactions specified by sections 305 to 312 of that Act have not been made. We have no
exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Jonathan 0"Connel |

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Audit Firm
Dublin

31 March 2021
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